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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
NG Chi Ming

HUI Yan Kuen

HUI Man Wai (Appointed on Ist December 2018)

HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey (Appointed on [st December 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
HO Wai Chi, Paul

CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHAN Ka Ho

AUDIT COMMITTEE

HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung
CHING Yu Lung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

HUI Sai Chung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

HUI Sai Chung

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung
CHING Yu Lung

BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREETEASREE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. HUI Sai Chung, aged 72, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group.

He is responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the
Group's business strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales
functions of the Group. He has more than 49 years' experience in the plastics

industry.

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 70, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director
and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations
and administration of the Group. He has more than 49 years' experience in the
plastics industry and he was awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The

Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. NG Chi Ming, aged 54, is the Technology Development Director of
Greater China Department, Operations Director of Colorants Business of the
Group and the General Manager (Acting) of Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Trading Co.,
Ltd. He is responsible for developing of plastics colouration, compounding
technology and key accounts in the Greater China market. He holds a Higher
Diploma in Textile Chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University's predecessor). He also holds a Master of Engineering
Management degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He joined the
Group in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has
over 30 years' experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding

techniques.

Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, aged 42, is the Southern China General Manager of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and Guangzhou Ngai Hing
Hong Plastic Materials Ltd. and is responsible for sales and marketing of plastic
materials in Hong Kong and other cities in Southern China. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Civil Engineering from Queen’s University, Ontario, Canada and also
holds a Master degree of Business and Administration from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. He joined the Group in 2004 and has
over |4 years' experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr.
HUI Yan Kuen is the son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the
Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan Kit (who is the senior management
of the subsidiary of the Company) and Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey (who is the
Director of the Company).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr. HUI Man Wai, aged 49, is the Business Development Manager of Dongguan

Coltec Plastic Trading Company Limited and is responsible for market
exploration and business development of Colour Masterbatches and Functional
Masterbatches for plastic industries in Southern and South Western China. He
holds a Master degree of Business and Administration (Executive) from City
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1997 and has over 22 vears'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Man Wai is
the son of Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (who is the Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company).

Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 45, is the General Manager of Dongguan
Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Limited and NHH Coltec Limited and is responsible
for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches
for plastic industries in Hong Kong, Guangdong and other cities in Southern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree with honors in Arts (Major in Economics)
from Queen'’s University, Ontario, Canada. He joined the Group in 2004 and
has over |9 years' experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr.
HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman
of the Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan Kit (who is the senior
management of the subsidiary of the Company) and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (who is
the Director of the Company).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 68, is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho &
Company, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree
in Social Sciences and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHAN Dit Lung, aged 69, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic
Material Ltd. He has more than 42 vyears' experience in plastic trading. He was
formerly a lecturer of Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic
University. He is now the Honorary Lifetime Chairman of Hong Kong Plastic
Material Suppliers Association, President of Hong Kong Plastics Recycling
Association, Honorary Chairman of The Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries Limited, Director of Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre and
Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Brands Protection Alliance. He has also been

awarded the Chief Executive's Commendation for Community Service.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. CHING Yu Lung, aged 49, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since 9th February 2009. Mr. Ching currently serves as the Chief
Financial Officer of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). Mr. CHING also serves as the Independent
Non-executive Director of each of Hopson Development Holdings Limited
(stock code: 754) , Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area Development
Company Limited (formerly known as Hopewell Highway Infrastructure
Limited, stock code: 737) and Termbray Industries International (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 93), all of them are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He obtained a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Executive Master degree in Business
Administration from Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006, respectively.
Mr. CHING is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and member
of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has more than 27
years of experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 61, is the assistant to Chairman and she is responsible
for credit control of the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from The Open University of Hong Kong. She joined the Group in 1977

and she has more than 34 years' experience in plastic materials trading.

Mr. NG Tat Ching, aged 64, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd., Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. and Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic
Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., and is responsible for the overall business
operations of the above mentioned group of companies. Mr. NG holds a
Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and an executive
director of the above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and has over
38 years' experience in plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. NG has held several key positions in various multinational companies for

engineering plastic materials sales and product marketing in Asia Pacific regions.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. WONG Chi Hang, aged 48, is the Director and General Manager of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales
and marketing in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in
Chemistry from The University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business
Administration from the University of South Australia. He joined the Group in

1994 and has over 25 years' experience in sales & marketing.

Mr. CHAN Ka Ho, aged 46, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration
in Accounting and Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a
joint Master of Science degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science
from City University of Hong Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
("FCCA") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“FCPA™).
He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder (‘CFA") and a Certified
Financial Risk Manager (‘FRM"). He has over 23 years' experience in auditing,
finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial, treasury, information

technology, administration and human resources management of the Group.

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 46, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour
Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai
and other cities in Eastern China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from
University of Toronto. He joined the Group in 1998 and has over 21| years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kit is the
son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the
brother of Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (both are the
Directors of the Company).
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(“the Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year
ended 30th June 2019. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover
of HK$1,852,680,000 (2018: HK$1,995,313,000) and profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$7,806,000 (2018: HK$46,171,000). Earnings
per share for the year were HK2.I| cents (2018: HKI2.5] cents). To retain
sufficient capital for future business development, the Board of Directors (the

“Board") does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

During the year under review, though oil price stabilised after plummeting,
it still declined when compared with the previous year, and plastic material
prices came down correspondingly. As for the macroeconomic environment,
with the looming China-US trade war showing no sign of resolving in the
near future, overall trade sentiment was adversely affected. Fluctuation of
the Renminbi exchange rate and rising production costs in Mainland China
also added to the pressure on businesses. To cope with direct impact of the
tough operating environment and seeing a dim economic outlook, enterprises
were keen to secure orders and opted to compete on product price, thus
had profit squeezed. With customers strategically keeping inventory low, the
Group was more prudent in taking orders to lower credit risk. Other factors
such as higher borrowing costs and price adjustment also bore negatively on
the Group's business. Hence, the Group's total turnover for the year ended
30 June 2019 decreased by 7.1% year-on-year to HK$1,852,680,000 (2018:
HK$1,995,313,000).

Facing such a challenging business environment, the Group strictly implemented
cost control measures during the year. However, its overall gross profit
and gross profit margin lowered by 24.1% and 2.3 percentage points to
HK$192,859,000 (2018: HK$253,932,000) and 10.4% respectively. Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted to HK$7,806,000
(2018: HK$46,171,000). Basic earnings per share was HK2.Il cents (2018:
HKI12.51 cents).
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

To reserve sufficient capital for business development, the Board does not
recommend payment of a final dividend for the year.

Among the Group's three major business segments, the colorants, pigments
and compounded plastic resins segment stood out in the performance during
the year. The government of Mainland China has launched major tax and fee
cuts targeting to trim overall tax receipt by RMB2 trillion, in its bid to stabilise
economic growth and employment, as well as stimulate domestic consumption.
The Group thus strategically strengthened production of high quality sanitary
products and has continued to push to enlarge its market share in the food
packaging-related product market in Mainland China. It has also actively
controlled costs and enhanced the operational efficiency of all its factories.
However, sales of automobile application and electric vehicle related products
has been inevitably affected by the sluggish global economic environment and
the deadlock of the China-US trade talks. At the Group's appropriate strategies,
the business segment recorded turnover of HK$297,704,000, with gross profit
margin down by a slight one percentage point, while profit before taxation
surged by 28.5%. Moreover, alive to the strong demand in the Internet-of-Things
smart home market in Mainland China, the Group has actively developed related
market to open up new income sources and develop new clienteles.

During the year under review, plastic material prices continued to slide rather
sharply in particular in the second half year. The drop in oil price, among
other factors, continued to affect the profit of the engineering plastic business
segment. The weak demand in the Mainland China market did not help either.
As a result, turnover of the business segment amounted to HK$217,874,000,
with gross profit margin down by |.2 percentage points. Profit before taxation
reduced by 25.6% to HK$17,627,000. Heeding the global trade situation, the
Group strategically expanded into other export markets. At the same time,
it strived to enrich its product mix and actively liaised with end-customers,
enabling it to maintain stable income. Going forward, the Group will maintain
this strategy and explore opportunities in steady pace to work more closely
with end-customers, thereby secure new income sources.

The Group's operational model of rallying and working with world-renowned
fast food restaurant chains is mature, bringing in bulk orders of stable volume,
enabling the Group to effectively lower inventory risks. However, with the
China-US trade war seriously affecting the export markets, affecting negatively
the economic environment, customers generally turned conservative in ordering.
In addition, with operating costs up due to the Federal Reserve raising interest
rate in the first half year, turnover of the plastics trading business segment
dropped by 6.6% to HK$1,337,102,000, while gross profit margin narrowed
by approximately 2.4 percentage points and loss before taxation was incurred.
Apart from continuing to implement stringent cost control measures, the
Group will continue to maintain close ties with existing customers and, with
the domestic market for daily use products as promotional focus, apply its best
competitive advantages, with the aim of achieving a stable business growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Prospects

Looking ahead at the second half of 2019 and the first half of 2020, although
the global and Chinese economies will still be uncertain, there are also some
favourable conditions which will present opportunities to the industry. For
example, oil price is stabilising and interest rate is coming back down. Hence,
the management is cautiously optimistic about development of the Group in the

future.

Regarding business development, on top of producing conventional home
appliances and maintaining stable relationship with large toy companies, the
Group has stepped up a direct liaison with end-customers, and put more
resources into exploring end-customers of sanitary products, matching the
country's policy to promote the domestic consumption market. The Group
has also strengthened the development of food contact products, including
setting up dedicated production and packaging workshops, investing in special
water cooling system to gain the confidence of customers with a high sanitary
requirement on colour masterbatch, thereby increase sales to the food, drugs

and cosmetics industries.

Moreover, the advent of 5G will open the era of interconnectivity and create
business opportunities for different industries. The Group has checked at
appropriate time latest market trends, that it may prepare to unearth new
income sources. To do so, the Group has strategically worked with new
technology providers, investing in research and development together with them

to develop high value adding and high margin 5G and smart home products.

To optimise risk management and mitigate the impact of the China-US trade
war, the Group is actively pushing to develop business in the Greater Bay Area,
while seizing development opportunities in other markets, so as to generate a

long-term stable income and improve its overall profitability.

As for the cost control, the Group will continue to implement strict cost control
measures, including cutting administrative, and distribution and production costs.
Furthermore, it will strive to enhance and raise overall administrative efficiency,

as well as strengthen the effectiveness of its operations.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Prospects (Continued)

In the close to 50 years since set up, the Group has made it through many
economic cycles. It has been able to sustain development thanks to its
professional management team with years of experience in the industry leading
it in overcoming different challenges. As always, the Group will apply its business
strategy targeting for strong and stable growth and also practise prudent
financial management to the ultimate end of delivering stable business growth

and reward to shareholders in the long run.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow
and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June
2019 the Group has available aggregate banking facilities of approximately
HK$586,659,000, of which approximately HK$397,328,000 have been utilised
and were secured by corporate guarantees issued by the Company and legal
charges on certain leasehold land and buildings, investment properties and
restricted bank deposits in Mainland China and Hong Kong owned by the
Group (see Notes 16, 17, 18 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements).
The Group's cash and bank balances as at 30th June 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$93,601,000. The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2019
was approximately 83.3%, based on the total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$406,977,000 and the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$488,719,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and contingent liabilities, and the
Company's contingent liabilities are disclosed in Notes 32, 37 and 3.1(d) to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally
denominated in US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations
and manages its exchange risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from

time to time.

At 30th June 2019, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect
of forward contracts in order to manage the Group's exposure in foreign

currencies from its operations as follows:

Chairman's Statement
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
As at 30th June 2019, the Group had approximately 659 full-time employees.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive
scheme which is geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of
its employees, as an incentive to motivate its employees to increase their
contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social or medical insurance
coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its employees

depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

|, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to the Group'’s customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing
support, my fellow directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past
year. The Group will, as always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive
for its long-term development and the best interest of the shareholders aiming

at attaining more promising results in the coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th September 2019
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2019.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated

financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

A fair review of the Group's business and the analysis of the Group's
performance for the year ended 30th June 2019 as well as prospects of the
Group's business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to |13
of this Annual Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
There are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent in the market and some are due to

external environment. Major risks and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

(i) Volatility of economic climate in Mainland China and Hong Kong, which is

closely related to consumption thereto.

In order to mitigate the impact of a weakening economy of Mainland
China, the Group is continuing to expand the overseas markets. The Group
continues to take a cautious approach in steering the Group forward, and

recognises the need to sustain sales momentum.

(i) Credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their

obligations.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade
debtors is prepared on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise

any credit risk associated with receivables.

The Group's other financial risks and uncertainties are set out in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Particulars of Important Events
No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the

financial year.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement
the financial disclosures are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 8 to |3 and 63 to 194,

respectively, of this Annual Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance, and Compliance with Relevant Laws
and Regulations

The Group takes its corporate social responsibility to heart, and is fully
committed to making a difference for its staff, the community and the common
good. During the year there are a wide range of activities and campaigns held to

treasure the staff, community and the environment.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and Mainland China while the Company itself was incorporated in
Bermuda and is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the year ended 30th June 2019 and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations

in the above-mentioned jurisdictions.

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and
Suppliers
(1)  Employees
Recognising that human resources are one of the greatest assets of the
Group, the Group provides a variety of benefits, talent trainings and

development for employees.

(i) Customers
It is the Group's mission to satisfy different customers’ needs and continues
to contribute to the wellbeing of the public by providing plastic materials
which include their social

which suit the customers’ requirements,

responsibility and sustainability.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and

Suppliers (Continued)

(i) Key suppliers
The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a number of
suppliers and taken great care to ensure that they share our belief in good
quality and ethics. The Group prudently select suppliers and requires all of

them to comply with our social and environmental responsibility guidelines.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 55.

At a meeting held on 27th February 2019, the Directors resolved not to declare

any interim dividend for the six months ended 31st December 2018.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Notes 28 and 39 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are

set out in Note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note

27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
ESEHRE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2019, the reserves of the Company available for distribution,
comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
approximately HK$69,816,000 (2018: HK$70,601,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may
not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus,
if there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (ii)
the realisable value of the company's assets would thereby be less than the

aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and
there was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 195.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.

18 FREATHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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On

22nd November 2012, the Company has adopted a share option scheme

(the "Scheme”) and terminated the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 5th December 2002. Under the terms of the New Scheme, the

Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share

Options to subscribe for the shares of the Company subject to the terms and

conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

0]

(if)

(iii)

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options
to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the

Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
director but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an
offer to take up Share Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix
Il of the circular issued by the Company on |8th October 2012.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No
Share Option may be granted under the Scheme if such limit is exceeded.
The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share
Options granted to each qualifying participant under the Scheme and any
other option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options)
in any |2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares

in issue.
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(iv) Option period
In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) may in its absolute discretion determine, save that
such period shall not expire more than 10 years from the date on which a

Share Option is granted and accepted by the grantee.

(v) Amount payable on application or acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a
period of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$|

is payable on acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

(vi) Subscription price
The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option,
(i) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option or (iii) the

nominal value of the share (whichever is the greater).

(vii) The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
between 22nd November 2012 and 2Ist November 2022 to offer the
grant of an option to any qualifying participants.

No Share Options were granted or exercised during the year.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2019 are set out

in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.
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The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director,)
Dr. WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)
(Retired on 22nd November 2018)
Madam LIU Sau Lai
(Resigned on 30th November 20/8)
Mr. NG Chi Ming
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen
Mr. HUI Man Wai
(Appointed on st December 20/8)
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey
(Appointed on st December 20/8)
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul*
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung*
Mr. CHING Yu Lung*

*  Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with

the Company's Bye-laws.

In accordance with clause 86(2) of the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. HUI Man Wai
and Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, who were appointed after the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 22nd November 2018, shall hold offices until
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (‘AGM™) and shall be eligible for re-
election at the AGM.

Mr. HUI Sai Chung, Mr. CHAN Dit Lung and Mr. CHING Yu Lung retire by
rotation in accordance with clause 87 of the Company's Bye-laws and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In order to comply with the code provision A4.3 as set out in Appendix |4 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules™), separate resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company
to approve the further appointment of Mr. CHAN Dit Lung and Mr. CHING
Yu Lung as Independent Non-executive Directors at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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The fundamental policy of the Group's remuneration and incentive scheme is
to link total compensation for senior management with the achievement of
annual and long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation at
competitive industry levels, the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain
key executives essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive
scheme includes an equity component that is designed to align the long-term
interest of management with those of shareholders. The remuneration package
comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses and

incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim
to fairly represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various
committee meetings. The remuneration package represents annual directorship

fees.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employer within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), every Director
is entitled under the Company's Articles of Association to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution or
discharge of his or her duties. To the extent permitted by such Ordinance, the
Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of companies

in the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS

AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2019, the interest and short positions of each Director and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained

in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2019
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Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

ERBEZANARAEE
Personal Corporate Family Other
interests interests interests interests
Name of Directors EERA AR TEER RE#ER HiiEsR
Mr. HUI Sai Chung AT EEsE A Long Positions #F & 16703600 202,721,500 (a) = =
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FEF LA Long Positions 1F& 19,850,400 198,803,500 (b) = =
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen FAREE Long Positions 18 = = = (©
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey ~ FFABESLAE Long Positions I &
(Appointed on (R=B-—N\F
I'st December 2018) +=R—~H
BZf) = = = (d)
Mr. HUI Man Wai FXERE Long Positions ¥ &
(Appointed on (R=T—N\EF
Ist December 2018) +-A—AH
EZ) 250,000 = = (e)
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBXT Long Positions I &
(Resigned on (RZE—NF
30th November 2018) +—A=+H
BHT) 1,423,000 = = (e)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

(Continued)
Notes:

@

(b)

©

(d)
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196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)).
In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr. HUI
Sai Chung. Mr. HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5 class A non-
convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Evergrow
Company Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition,
2,082,000 shares are held by Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Mr. HUI
Kwok Kwong. Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible
redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Evergrow.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever Win
holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win
directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever Win
holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win
directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey.

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which
held 196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2019, are as follows:
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ZERDER 196,721,500 J5#H Good
Benefit Limited ([ Good Benefit]) #H
Ever Win Limited ([Ever Winl) %5 Good
BenefitB 2 2 P+ A B — 4z (MizE(e)) °
LESN - 6,000,000 % 8% {5 FHEver Win B HF
ﬁ o

Ever WinBAREE | iyt 2 E#A%1H 50,001
AR A A 3EE - FFiH IR 4 R EAD
BRORIEREver Win AREBEETA] X
] B8 BB ST %15 33,957 IR RS A% ©

ZERM A Z196,721,5008% Ty Good
Benefiti A ° Evergrow Company Limited
([Evergrow]) %8 Good Benefit & 72 IU+
B —#Eam (FI5Eee)) ° Bbh + 2,082,000%
B% 15 R Evergrow H 354 ©

Evergrow & RXE{E | T 2 & i@ A% 1% 50,000
REBFFBINAEERE - FRXEESHE
Evergrow AR AT A] IR 0] fE B8 %
A&7 30,8230 °

ZERMEBZ196,721,5000% J5 H Good
Benefit 78 ° Ever Win #%8 Good Benefit
BAZH TRz (HEE)) o 1o -
6,000,000 i &0 A Ever WinE A °
Ever Win& R EE | hloT 2 Ti@A 1D 3330%
MAFAREERE -

ZERDERZ2196,721,5000 J5#H Good
Benefit ¥ ° Ever Win#¥HE Good Benefit
B2+ ABE—HES (HiE(e)) ° 1o
6,000,000 f% B& {5 B Ever WinHE#HH o
Ever WinSREE | iyt 2 E B 3338
HEFABREERE -

EEHEGood Benefit (RZE—NFENA=
THEBEARA 96,721,500 %) A
ZEmmEmAT

Number Percentage

of shares of holding

Name of Directors EERE R EE BERESL
Mr. HUI Sai Chung IR A 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FTEI A 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Man Wai (Appointed on |st December 2018) HAXEEE(RZZ-NF+=A—BEZE) 360 3.6%
Madam LIU Sau Lai (Resigned on 30th November 2018) BEBZT (R=Z—\F+—A=THET) 80 0.8%
Others Hit 540 54%
10,000 100.0%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

As at 30th June 2019, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting
deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject
to an option granted to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire

the said non-voting deferred shares.
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Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

RFEEREREZEROEE
Personal Other
interests interests
Name of Directors EENA EPN = Hih iz
Mr. HUI Sai Chung S ER SR A4 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FFEI SE A 200,000 50,000 (ii)

Notes:
(i)  These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the
subsidiaries of the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust
for the Group as at 30th June 2019, none of the Directors and chief executives
have any beneficial or non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the
Company and associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

() ZERRDBEEver WintsH ©
(i) ZZHEIR1D B Evergrow A ©

BREXHERBERARNRRE TESRNUERET
ARAEEFAEARAE THERRNRE
ARG RZFB—AFERNA=TH R
BEAFBERANEI2EREFE 2 M
PR 8% AR R AR 2 < Rl T ) AR 2 B BB R
FEHMAME  ZEERESTHRAEBR
ARA R EE (AR S RERDIE
XVERERE ) 2 RA B E RS E AR
EFRERNATRECERSFERE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above,

(a) at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate;

and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under
the age of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or
debentures of the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 30th June 2019, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not
been notified of any substantial shareholders' interests and short positions, being

5% or more of the Company's issued share capital, other than those of the

Directors and chief executives as disclosed above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major
suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier 31%
Five largest suppliers combined 76%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers is less than 30% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th
June 2019 and therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major

customers is made.
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None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of
Directors and the Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal
controls and risk evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHAN Dit Lung
and Mr. CHING Yu Lung. The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the annual

financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2019 with the Directors.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the

Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who

retires and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th September 2019
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Corporate Governance Report
EEELRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures which serve as an important element of risk
management throughout the growth and expansion of the Company. The
Company emphasises on maintaining and carrying out sound, solid and effective

corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out
in Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “CG Code") throughout the year ended

30th June 2019, except for the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A.2.| of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this
annual report, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company has not appointed any individual to be the chief executive. The roles
of the chief executive have been performed collectively by all the executive
Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The Board considers that
this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors with different
expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company’s policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of
this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when

it thinks appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix [0 of

the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. The Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all
Directors confirmed they have complied with the required standard of dealings

set out therein during the year.

28 FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

ARRBNEBYLRFEEEATRLE
o EBBARRRNERT  ZHRARRE
FREBREECERLE - ARAEEH
FREATER  REMEBNREERE
AHHRNIRE -

BT XA e RBESN - BE—F—NFX
A=1BLEFER  ARR—EETLE™W
BAIER 14 R EEIATRID R(EEER
&) (TP R Pretsl 2 BB @M <r RIl&
7 o

RIFTRMEXEA2 G - EFERITHRAE
(RIBTRIER) <BEEENF - TRA—
ARKRE -BEAFERESEH - AR
AEE((E%))/ g2 (852K
AREFEEMALTERETREE - TRER
ZBETVDRARBMEATESR (BFEE
FI)AREE -BEZERR - ZLHFES
HEBTNRABEXNMTEFTRRIRE 75
AERATARE 2 BR MRS - A
AEEMNE - REAK  EFEHTHR
AREHZRR  REBREEREREZE
TTIRABEL -

EBETESRRS

AARERM ETRBINIE 0FTR 212
FAEAEEETESR S ZRTEA -
ARFEAZBESFHEEEA M2
BEFORBEENFALBETERH

TR BERE -



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and

Directors’ attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors. Save as disclosed in the
biographies of the Directors on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship between Board
members. The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc
basis, as required by business needs. During the year, the Board held a total
of five regular board meetings, eight ad-hoc board meetings and one general

meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set

Corporate Governance Report
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out below: 28BN ARRAE EFEAXLE
EHEFBOT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings Attendance Al Attendance RR Attendance
Attendants il fleny HERE EERY HERH RERY HERY
Executive Directors: HiTEE
Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) SRS (£5) 5 5 8 8
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FEREE
(Deputy Chairman (AILE#
and Managing Director) EZ84E) 5 5 8 8
Dr. WONG Chi Ying, Anthony ETREL
(Vice Chairman) (A%
(Retired on 22nd November 20/6) (R=F-)1£
A=t =HEfF) 5 8 3
Madam LIU Sau Lai BAELL
(Resjaned on 30th November 2018) (R=F-)1%
T-A=1HFE) 5 2 8 3 \ |
Mr. NG Chi Ming REALE 5 5 8 8 \ |
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen FAEBRE 5 5 8 8 \ |
Mr. HUI Man Wai FXEEE
(Appointed on /st December 20/8) (R-F-/1¥
T-A-HEE(E) 5 3 8 5 0
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAREE
(Appointed on Ist December 2016) (R=F—/1#
T=H-FEEH) 5 3 8 0 0
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTEE:
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul fgSEE 5 5 8 0 \ |
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung e ik 5 5 8 0 |
Mr. CHING Yu Lung RimERE 5 5 8 0 \ |
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and

Directors’ attendance (Continued)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across
the Board and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-
third of its members comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least
one of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or financial management expertise. The biographies
of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, which

demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent within the definition of
the Listing Rules.

Role and Function

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its

approval. The principal functions of the Board are:

® to establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company

and set the objectives of the management;

® to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment

proposals;

® to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

® to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls,

risk management, financial reporting and compliance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on a
going concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2019, and of the Group's profit
and cash flows for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2019, the members of the Board have selected
appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new and amended
accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2019, have applied them consistently
with previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made

are prudent and reasonable.

During the year ended 30th June 2019, the management provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2
of the CG Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 52 to
54.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr. HUI Sai Chung, Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, Dr. WONG
Chi Ying, Anthony (Retired on 22nd November 20/8), Madam LIU Sau Lai
(Resigned on 30th November 20/8), Mr. NG Chi Ming, Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, Mr.
HUI Man Wai, Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHAN
Dit Lung and Mr. CHING Yu Lung have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial to the Company in
their respective fields, including attending seminar, workshops, conference and
courses offered by professional bodies and self-studying, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board

remains informed and relevant.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development. During the year
ended 30th June 2019 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has arranged to provide the Directors with briefing on the amendments to the

Listing Rules and self-studying materials.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities
of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been
complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual
basis.

Director’s Nomination Policy

The Director's nomination policy of the Company was adopted by the Board
and became effective on Ist January 2019 and the nomination committee of the

Company (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible for execution.

Director Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying director
candidates, including recommendations from Board members, management,
and headhunters. The Nomination Committee may also put forward director
candidates who are not nominated by Board members. In addition, the
Nomination Committee will consider director candidates properly submitted
by shareholders of the Company through formal procedures set out in the
Company's Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a

Director.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For proposing
director candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and

recommendation.

All director candidates, including incumbents and candidates nominated by
shareholders of the Company are evaluated by the Nomination Committee
based upon the Director's qualifications. While director candidates will be
evaluated on the same criteria, the Nomination Committee retains the
discretion to establish the relative weighting of such criteria, which may vary
based on the composition, skill sets, and experiences of the collective Board

rather than on the individual candidate.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
recommendation of director candidates by the Nomination Committee to stand
for election at any general meeting. The Board will take such recommendations
under advisement and is responsible for designating the director candidates to
be elected at the annual general meeting of the Company and electing Directors

to fill Board vacancies.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Procedure for Appointment of New Director

Director candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal information
in a prescribed form, together with their written consent to be appointed as a
Director and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any documents
or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their standing for

election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment
of new Director and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
director candidate, evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as
set out below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for

directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable director candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall rank them by order of preference based on the needs of the

Company and reference check of each director candidate (where applicable).

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder of the Company for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee shall evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as
set out below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for
directorship and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall make recommendation to shareholders of the Company in respect

of the proposed election of Director at the general meeting (where applicable).

A director candidate is allowed to withdraw his/her candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the company

secretary of the Company.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not
assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the

general meeting.

Procedure for Re-appointment of Director at General Meeting

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution and service
to the Company of the retiring Directors including their attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings, and the level of participation

and performance on the Board.

Corporate Governance Report
EEELRE

EE2 (@)

EEFESHRER
EHREEABERBRIEETRAIERF
ZHEARE  URESAEE  AER
TAEE YRASHEEEERELE
B S E A AR EE AR RE
HEAZH o

REAZESRENIZEHFEETNES
ESREANBEAER (HRBFE) K-
WRIEATIIBRNERIFFEZERREA -
MAREZEFHREARBCERELE
=

mEREEk—EXZEEENEFRE
A RERBERREARANFTERE
NERREANEBAEE (WER) H5t
PN B IR ©

FAE R AR A REIRE LN A AR IRE
AELRBREEEIMAL  REZEER
RIBA TSR ERFTEZEEREA -
UAEZESBRREARTEERELE
Z WH REZESGR/REZSERR
BEARE FEAEERAAQRIKRERDE
& (@A) -

B RE AR RBRER KRS SB/TAEM R
AABMEELEEBMERE -

HEEEHHBRRBEKE - HERALTA
RRECEE=ZGHEBERRAS LS
% o

RBERAELEREENER
REZEGRRIREZEZTHAQRNE
RERERY  BRELEEEEEEN
BRAE (WER) WHFER  UAREES
EN2ERERRR

Annual Report 4 [E3R4 2018/2019 33



Corporate Governance Report
EEELRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Procedure for Re-appointment of Director at General Meeting (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine whether the

retiring Directors continue to meet the criteria as set out below.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make recommendation
to the shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed re-election of

Directors at the general meeting.

Director Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications are at a
minimum to be required of a director candidate in recommending to the Board

potential new Director, or the continued service of existing Director:
(a) the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

(b) proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and the ability

to exercise sound business judgment;

(c) qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and

experience that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

(d) the ability to assist and support management and make significant

contributions to the Company’s success;

(e) the contribution on diversity of the Board and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board;

(f) an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required of a
member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy necessary

to diligently carry out those responsibilities; and

(g) meet the “independence” criteria as required under the Listing Rules and
the composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the

Listing Rules from time to time (where applicable).

Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria for director
candidate, although the Nomination Committee may also consider such other
factors as it may deem to be in the best interests of the Company and the

shareholders of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Nomination Committee was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.
The Nomination Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors
and an executive Director. The composition and attendance record of the

Nomination Committee are as follows:
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Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESRAE AR HE=R

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) IEESLE(ZEEDE/E) 3/3 100%

Mr. CHAN Dit Lung BRI BE L A& 3/3 100%

Mr. CHING Yu Lung RINBE S E 3/3 100%

Mr. HUI Sai Chung SRR S A4 3/3 100%
Role and Function RGBS

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and B L Eeas FHRIEE SR EE -

composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a
regular basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee would review
the Board's composition from time to time where Board diversity would be
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of services.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure,
size and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held three
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2019 to review the structure, size

and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has updated a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in

January 2019 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of

diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service.

Independence

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong element of
independence in the Board. The independent non-executive Directors shall be

of sufficient caliber and stature for their views to carry weight.

Gender and age

The Company is committed to maintaining an environment of respect for
people regardless of their gender in all business dealings and achieving a
workplace environment free of harassment and discrimination on the basis of
gender, physical or mental state, race, nationality, religion, age or family status.
The same principle is applied to the selection of potential candidates for

appointment to the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Skills and experience

The Board members should possess a balance of skills appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Group, including the independent
non-executive Directors possessing professional accounting and other
qualifications. The Directors have a mix of finance, academic and management
backgrounds that taken together provide the Group with considerable
experience in a range of activities including varied industries, education,

government, investment and the professions.

Measurable Objectives

I. The Company should comply with the requirements on board composition

under the Listing Rules from time to time.

2. The number of independent non-executive Directors should be not less

than three and one-third of the Board.

3. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

4. At least one Director should be the professional or have intensive

experience of the industry on which the business of the Group is.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Board Diversity

Policy had been met.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised
on Ist January 2019 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The

Audit Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors. The

BREEY

|

AR FVRIRH R P 2 4R FRARE 2 A A
MERZEE ((BREEE)) 2BERE
ER-Z-NF—A—BEH - BRZEE
SHEBIATESAN - BREE

composition and attendance record of the Audit Committee are as follows: GZAKREELEENT

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HEEBRE S ERE HE =
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) IBESLE(ZEEDE/E) 3/3 100%
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung BRI BE S A& 3/3 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung RINBESE 3/3 100%
Role and Function AERBE
The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity ERZESTIZERARBRYBRSE - A
and credibility of financial reporting, risk management and internal control REBMAINEERF 2 EBERAE
procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship with the external € » AR BN B SNES B9 A% BRED 4R 155 R 4F
auditor of the Company. 2R

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules.

Given below are the main duties of the Audit Committee:

(a) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of

its resignation or dismissal;

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the

nature and scope of the audit;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
Role and Function (Continued)

(c) to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to
the Board, focusing particularly on:
(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(iii) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to

financial reporting; and
(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any

matters the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of

management where necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2019, the Audit Committee met three times, in
particular, to review and discuss the followings:

® the auditing and financial reporting matters;

® the appointment of external auditor;

® the establishment of internal control system; and

® the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors

and all senior staff of the Group.

Corporate Governance Report
EEELRE

%*?;Eg(ﬂﬁ

AERBE (&)

(0 EMEFSRIFFERFEMBER
KRATGETER  WHASHE TS
18
() SHBERREBERTMER
(i FREZHENHT
(i) EFxmEBENERNFHE

vy FERLENBRREREAFREER

(v) BTEEANBER

Vi) BT ETRAIRE A BN KR
EEER R

d (WEFE EEBEETESNE
) & Iﬁﬁlﬁﬁimﬁﬁﬂ%
BER U RAMINEZSEN % 25
FREVSEIE o

SAZ+HLIEFE @ #

ReE NERERER

s ZEKUBHmESE

o H{EHINEEAZENAD :

o BIUNHEEERL &

s THIRBENRFEPBEHRE -

BERZEEBMUKE A TR G A
B A SEBEAPTA =R B EEUEF -

Annual Report 4 [E3R4 2018/2019 39



Corporate Governance Report
EEELRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised
on 26th March 2012 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee™) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock
Exchange. The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors and an executive Director. The composition and attendance

record of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

FMEES

K
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BERZE——F=A-F+ HEH - HF
LZERBR-UBIIFNTEER (T
EEAX o FTNE B g 2 AR R R A28
A

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESBRE #rE i FE R

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) IE&E4E (ZEE8LE) 3/3 100%

Mr. CHAN Dit Lung BRIXBESEAE 3/3 100%

Mr. CHING Yu Lung BRINEESRE 3/3 100%

Mr. HUI Sai Chung T EEE A 3/3 100%
Role and Function ACREE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive
Directors and senior management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their offices or appointment. It takes into consideration on
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and

responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the
performance and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives.
The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year ended 30th
June 2019 to review the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
and the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management of

the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid

and payable by the Company for such services are as follows:
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HK$’ 000
THET
Audit services for the Group BNEBIRE 2 B RS 1,983
Non-audit services including: FEEZRBE R
— review of interim results — EHP AR 268
— taxation services for the Group — RS EIRME 2 BB ARTE 349
— Mainland China tax advising service — H B A R 7 s AR TS 152
— agreed upon procedures on the Group's annual results —REEERFERAMZHETRER
announcement 23
Total nE 2,775
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE TEEREES
Composition MR
A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate ARAMNEXELZES ([EXEREZE

Governance Committee”) was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate
Governance Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors.
The composition and attendance record of the Corporate Governance

Committee are as follows:

2 HRZT—F=A=+SBREFH
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Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
Attendants HEE HEERRE AR HE=R
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) fAlfE& %4t (ZEES L E) 212 100%
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung PRIXBE ST 2/2 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung EangEk A 22 100%
Role and Function AenEE
The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and PESALATECBERREMBAERB D

reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review
the corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee
held two meetings during the year ended 30th June 2019 to review the
corporate governance policy in the Group and recommend the training
arrangement on corporate governance to the employees of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The Group
has formulated and adopted a risk management process which includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, risk monitoring and reporting. At
least on an annual basis, the management of the Company identifies risks that
would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's objectives, and assesses
and prioritises the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans are then established for those risks considered to be significant,

which include regular reporting to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive
policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk
controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for
maintaining proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of
financial information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the
likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors. In addition, the Group has
established internal control protocols and control self-assessment process on
major operations. Assessment results are submitted to the Board for ongoing

monitoring purpose.

For the purpose of enhancing the risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the Board and
the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring and in performing the internal
audit functions for the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation
of internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation

actions are taken.

The Board has reviewed and considered the Group's risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate during the year. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Group are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Ka Ho (“Mr. Chan") was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on Ist January 2007. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Chan possesses
the necessary qualifications and experience, and is capable of performing the
functions of a company secretary. Mr. Chan is the secretary of the Board and
various Board committees including audit committee, remuneration committee,

Corporate Governance Committee and nomination committee.

During the year ended 30th June 2019, Mr. Chan has complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules by taking no less than |5 hours of relevant professional

training.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.
Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders
may be put to the Board through the following channels to the company

secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”):

I. by mail to the Company’s head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Center, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number +852 2693 [663;

3. by fax at fax number +852 2694 0877; or

4. by email at info@nhh.com.hk.

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders.

Announcements are posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.

nhh.com.hk. Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the website also

contains additional information on the Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure

a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and

goals.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by
poll in all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to
shareholders together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The
Company has taken steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about
voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the constitutional documents
of the Company. The Board attends the Annual General Meetings to answer
shareholders’ questions. Poll results are published on the website of the Stock
Exchange and are posted on the Company's corporate website shortly after the

meetings.

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election
as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) at the Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, é6th Floor,
Hopeful Factory Centre, |0 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the personal information of the
Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and his/her contact
details; and (ii) must be signed by the Shareholder concerned including the
information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed
by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent of
publication of his/her personal data. The period for lodgement of the Notice
shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting. In
order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider
the proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without adjourning the
general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as
soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business days prior to the date of the

general meeting appointed for such election.
The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March

2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply
with the code provision E.l.4 of the CG Code.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) was adopted by

the Board and became effective on |st January 2019.

The Dividend Policy is to ensure that the Board maintains an appropriate
procedure on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the
Company. The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the Company's
shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy.

The declaration and recommendation of dividends is subject to the decision of
the Board after considering the Company’s ability to pay dividends, which will
depend upon, among other things:

* the Group’s financial results;

* the Group's cashflow, liquidity and capital requirements;

* the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

* the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

* the Group’s shareholders’ interests;

* the Group's current and future business operations, conditions,

cycle and strategies;

e the general market conditions;

* the shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry’s norm;

* any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed

by the Group's lenders;

*  statutory and regulatory restrictions;

* past dividend record; and

* any other factors the Board may deem relevant.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (Continued)

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a dividend and the form
to pay, subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the
Bye-laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company must
be approved by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company at
an annual general meeting and must not exceed the amount recommended by
the Board. The Board may also consider declaring special dividends from time
to time, in addition to the interim and/or final dividends. There is no assurance

that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and its effectiveness

from time to time. Any revisions to the Dividend Policy shall be considered and

approved by the Board.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(the “Company’”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 194,

which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June 2019;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended:

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a

summary of significant accounting policies.
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OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30th June 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘the Code”), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
NV ST

HARETSEE @)

Key audit matter identified in our audit is valuation of investment properties. BTSRRIV ERETFERIRE

Key Audit Matter

YIRREE ©

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Notes 2.8, 4(c), /7 and |8 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group's investment properties were carried at HK$ 159,973,000
as at 30th June 2019 with a revaluation gain of HK$16,009,000
recorded in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
30th June 2019.

The fair values of the investment properties held by the Group were
derived using the income capitalisation method. An independent
professional valuer was engaged by management to assist in
estimating the fair values of the investment properties. Due to the
unique nature of each investment property, the assumptions applied
in the valuations were determined having regard to each property’s
characteristics. These valuations are dependent on certain key
assumptions that require significant judgement, such as capitalisation
rates including outgoings (‘Yields”), passing rentals of the current
leases and comparable market transactions.

RREEER

In assessing the reasonableness of management's
valuations of investment properties, we performed the
following procedures:

. We obtained and reviewed the valuation reports
prepared by the independent professional valuer.
We evaluated the independent professional
valuer's competence, capabilities and objectivity.

. We involved our in-house valuation experts in
assessing the valuation methodology used and
the appropriateness of the key assumptions
adopted such as Yields by comparing them to
publicly available data and their knowledge of the
property industry.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

HARETSEE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

We focused on the evaluation of management’s assessment on
the valuations of the Group's investment properties because
this assessment involved significant judgement and estimates and
the carrying values of these investment properties are financially

significant to the Group.

BRETEE (H)

o We have also checked the passing rentals of
the current leases adopted by the independent
professional valuer by comparing them to latest
lease agreements of the Group as at 30th June
2019.

o We assessed the reasonableness of the fair
value of the investment properties valued by
independent professional valuer by comparing
against the market transactions based on our own

market research.

We found the valuation methodology and key assumptions
used by management were supported by the available

evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th September 2019
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Consolidated Income Statement

FEWRR

For the year ended 30th June 2019
BE_Z-NEXNA=TRLFE

2019 2018
Note HK$ 000 HK$' 000
iEs3 FHET T
Revenue from contract with customers BEF &Rz W 5 1,852,680 1,995,313
Cost of sales HE KA 9 (1,659,821) (1,741,381)
Gross profit ER 192,859 253,932
Rental income HEBWA 6 7,442 6,603
Other gains, net Hith i es — F58 7 19,634 16,101
Distribution costs DA 9 (77,352) (80,493)
Administrative expenses THEH 9 (109,764)  (115,706)
Operating profit R 32,819 80,437
Finance income LU 1,043 553
Finance costs MBER (19,165) (14,561)
Finance costs,net  HMB#8—&F® 0 (18122)  (14008)
Profit before income tax B 152 B A 14,697 66,429
Income tax expense MIA X N (3,419) (16,307)
Profit for the year A i R 11,278 50,122
Attributable to: AN AL
Equity holders of the Company NS ES 7,806 46,171
Non-controlling interests FEPE 2 3,472 3,951
11,278 50,122
Earnings per share for profit attributable to REE R AR 5 A
equity holders of the Company during the year 2 FF% 4 7|
(expressed in HK cent per share) (AR B (LET)
— Basic and diluted — BN ES I3 211 12,51

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.

bR & Weak 2 8 SR BE P B RE — GBI RE -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HFeetlER

For the year ended 30th June 2019
BE_Z-NAEXA=TRLFE

2019 2018
HK$ 000 HK$' 000
FHET T
Profitfortheyear ..o Axsad Bl 5022
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hthira (B18), W
ltem that will not be reclassified subsequently Hreltewsimsis
to income statement: WK 2HEE -
Revaluation gain on property, plant and equipment ME  BERREERE
upon transfer to investment properties, BREYH 2 BRBigERYES
net of tax (Note 18) (PfFE18) 1,687 —
Fair value loss of financial asset at BRARBEFARMEE
fair value through other comprehensive income WM EEZ
NAEEEBE (323) —
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently B wEFES

to income statement: Waik 2IER -

Currency translation differences b X, =58 (21,336) 14,684
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year ~ AFHAbkre (BH) M (19972) 14684
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year AEZE (BB),Wa=esE (8,694) 64,806
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to: me (B8 haneEsEER

— Equity holders of the Company — RAIRE (11,746) 60,679

— Non-controlling interests — FEPE IR 3,052 4,127

(8,694) 64,806

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in FatiR G & OF U E 2% 8 BERE B B 5 — OF B9

g5

conjunction with the accompanying notes. F=
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEEARMAR

As at 30th June 2019
RZZE-AFARA=+H

2019 2018
Note HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
Bt THT FHETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN N Y 16 118,278 129,143
Leasehold land and land use rights &+ b &% 4 3 5B A4 17 16,000 18,399
Investment properties wEME 18 159,973 141,380
Intangible assets BIVEE 19 — —
Financial asset at fair value through other BRARBEFARMEE
comprehensive income W& E 20 1,677 -
Available-for-sale financial asset AL ENBEE 20 — 2,000
Deferred income tax assets RIETIA AR E 30 10,018 7,497
Deposits and prepayments for property, plant ME - BRE &R EEEE
and equipment and renovation costs BNRRZEE 1,503 3,635
307,449 302,054
Current assets MENE B
Inventories rE 22 319,251 290,158
Trade and bills receivables B S REWA T EWEE 23 234,446 284,292
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HaEW R FENREIES 29,431 19,466
Income tax recoverable A Y [B] 75 18 560 110
Restricted bank deposits X PRSI M IRITIE K 25 35,135 35,799
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTEEER 25 93,601 117,716
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 712,424 747,541
Total assets REE 1,019,873 1,049,595
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to the N AR R B AR K e 1
Company's equity holders
Share capital N 27 36,920 36,920
Share premium R A% 1B 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves H Ao f#E 28 37,302 57,948
Retained earnings REE & A 28 352,031 351,881
488,719 509,215
Non-controlling interests FEVE b fE 23,874 24,826
Total equity L 512,593 534,041
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

FEEEARMRR

As at 30th June 2019
RZZE-AFRA=+H

2019 2018
Note HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
MIzE FHET FAETT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BELEHRIBEE 30 6,723 6917
Provision for reinstatement costs B8 AN HE — 884
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 6723 7801
Current liabilities M EE
Trade and bills payables B RNFRENERE 26 56,979 86,059
Other payables, deposits received HihEm - edEI€ &
and accruals TERRE A 28,913 38,213
Bank borrowings RITIEE 29 406,977 375,529
Derivative financial instruments MESMITA 24 74 —
Income tax payable JEATHIE 7,614 7,952
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 500,557 507,753
Total liabilites ~ #®&8% 507,280 515,554
Total equity and liabilities wiEmMAaE 1,019,873 1,049,595

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the FiltiRa B E B E R I SRR BT —0F 5

accompanying notes. = o
The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 194 were approved by ES5E 94ENPBRREBRESTEN =
the Board of Directors on 27th September 2019 and were signed on its behalf T-NAFAAZTEEYE  IKKRES

ERE

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

FRitHER FRELK

Director Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
E HIEERE FBAETE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEERBER

kzi For the year ended 30th June 2019

BE_Z-NAFERNA=TALFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RERREASH
Other reserves
Hitfif
Financial asset
at fair value
At rogh oter
forsde comprehenshe
finencial  income reserve Exchange
aetresene  BALER fluctuation Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Revaluation THEE  HARMRE reserve Retined  controling
apttl premmium resene reserve HHEE  LmEE B eamings interests Totel
BE REEE  ARBR EhER B EERE  REBE  REWH e e
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
TAR TR TR TEL TAR TR TEn Thn TAR TR
At st July 2017 R-E-tErA-H 36920 62466 (1503) 7953 1310 - 36201 316,786 23065 483197
Comprehensive income fralis
Profit for the year KEEH - - - - - - - 46171 391 5010
Qther comprehensive income Etirakia
Currency translation differences Eizd - - - - - - 14508 - 16 14684
Total comprehensive income Felegs - - - - - - 14508 46,71 4107 64806
Transactons with owners LUGEVEY)
Acquiston of interest in a subsdiary Ty BHENHEAT
without change o control (Note 3800) S WE (H3e(r) = = () = = = = - 20 -
Disposal of a subsicary (Note ) HE-HBAR (Hits) = = = = = = = = 28 08
2016/17 fnal dhidend paid (Note 1)~ ¥HZ5-7/ 255§
KRS (i) = = = = = = = (7384 = 13%)
201718 interim dvidend paid (Note 1)~ ¥H=F—+/-F-NEE
RES (it 1) = = = = = = = (369 = (369)
Dividends paid o non-controling nteress 27 FoE vl a2 8 - = = = = = = = (30%) (30%4)
Todmadonibowes  BfRECASE - R e - - - SR UL L N N )
At 30th June 2018 R=E-NErA=1A 36920 62466 (2025) 7953 1310 - 50710 351881 186 530l
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEEREER

For the year ended 30th June 2019
BE_Z-NEXRA=THLEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AFARRERB

Other reserves

Rftfik

Financial asset
at fair value
Available-  through other

for-sale  comprehensive

financial  income reserve Exchange
asetresere BAAEE  fuctation Non-
Share Share Cpiel  Reclation  THEE FARHAE resere Retained  controling
aapita premium reserve reserve HHEE  HENEE E earings interests Total

B BEER  RARE  ERER B KEGR  RBGR  REMY  AoeER #8
HKSOWD  HKSO0  HKS'O0  HKSOOD KO0 HKSO00  HKSODD  HKSOD  HKSO0 KO
Thn ThR TEn TER ThR Thn TEn TER ThR 7

At Ist ly 2018 (as previousy rported) —~ R=F—ECA-A (RHER) 36900 62,466 (2005) 1983 1310 - 50710 351881 14806 534041
e g Mo 226) _ WARNNAD) B B - S L I R m__ O @
At Ity 2018 (e restated) R-E-NEtA-R(E3) 3920 62,466 (20%) 7953 = 1310 50710 351,609 ] 533,764
Comprehensive income el
Proft or the year RERH - - - - = = = 7806 341 11278
Other comprehensive income Efrfralia
Currency translation differences EiZE - - - - - - (21,00e) - (330) (21,338)
Revaluation gain on property, plant 0% BRRREERE
and equipment upon transfer to RENFBREER R
investment properties, net of tax (Kite)
(Note 18) - - - 1,687 - - - - - 1,687
Fair value loss of financial asset at EALRETA L2 ANA
fir vlue through other comprehensie  EBBEEZ 04 BEEE
income - - - - - () - - (%0) ()
Talomrbesherone  Bekad® - - L. - I . N U N Ly B
Transactions ith owners HHEELRS
Acquistion of inerest ina subsidiay ~~ FHEERIENHE
vithout change of control (Note 36(2))  FEXIE (H3k36(a )‘ - - (1094) - - - - = 1,0% =
Dividends ped to non-contrling nterests ~ [AERBIEAR RS - - - - - - - - (50%) (5,09
007118 frd didend pad (Note 1)~ ¥H=F~t /% \%
RERE (W) - - - - - - - (7.384) - (7.384)
Todvaactos wihomes  BAREZRAAE I R L N I R R o 3 G99 ()
At 30th June 2019 K25 A=1H 36920 62466 (3119 9640 - 1077 219,704 352,031 23874 512,593
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in bl iR A W AR B B R R B BB P B R — OF B
conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
'lv\eiﬂﬁiﬁi X

For the year ended 30th June 2019
BE_Z-NEXNA=TRLFE

2019 2018
Note HK$ 000 HK$' 000
iEs3 FHET TAET
Cash flows from operating activities EEBZREBMN
Cash (used in)/generated from operations ~ #EZEKH (EH)ELEZRE 31() (8,283) 48,330
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHEBNEM (1,095) (2,658)
Mainland China income tax paid ESTBERBAEHR (6,054) (14,878)
Interest received B U FI B 232 469
Net cash (used in)/generated from KA (ER),/ EEXEZ2FRE
operating activities (15,200) 31,263
Cash flows from investing activities KREXBZIRER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB 2 -« B5E M a& (8,100) (21,227)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - BE &K
and equipment ITIEES 8 31(b) 132 |44
Prepayments for property, plant and ME - RE N REEEE
equipment and renovation costs FERTER (1,503) (3,396)
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, & — B RIS FRE —
net of cash and cash equivalent included B HERBAR 2
in the subsidiary disposed of RekBReFER 8 — (33)
Restricted bank deposits R BB ERITIER (152) (11,905)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBER 2 FR e (9,623) (36,417)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

wh 3 EE%I}ILE%

For the year ended 30th June 2019

BEZ

—NERA=THLFE

2019 2018
Note HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
{iFsd THET FAET
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEB RSN
Proceeds from bank loans FIZIRITER 518,634 409,280
Repayment of bank loans ERRITENK (465,451) (440,228)
(Decrease)/increase in trust receipt loans EFEBIEE R O ), &N (8,709) 71,599
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ST T ISR 2 IR (5,093) (3,094)
Dividends paid X ATAR B (7,384) (11,076)
Interest paid on bank borrowings ETIRITEER S (17,013) (13,086)
Net cash generated from financing activitles BEXBMELZFHRe 14984 | 13395
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekReFEz ORd), G
cash equivalents (9,839) 8,241
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FH7HESNRIREERE
of the year 31(c) 107,459 96,689
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEER B E B (4,019) 2,529
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZIRE MIREERR 31(c) 93,601 107,459

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins

and engineering plastic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM I |, Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
27th September 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issues by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
available-for-sale financial asset, financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are

carried at fair value.

FEMGHRRME

—REH

REITERARF ([FAF]) REM
BAR (R A%E]) X ERER
BEH - 25 HEH ORNRT
RPN BEREE -

ARARIRRBRERMZ —HAA
PREME AR o &AMt &
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM I |, Bermuda °

ARAZBECREBBAR M
BRARZERE °

BRIET R HNIIER - IR MWK
TIABEIIR - RigaMEHmERE
RZE-NFAA-TLERESR
RHLAE

TESTHBERBE

TS e 5 8 T 98 R A
ZEBHER - BIFBBHIE -
B E B RN 2T 2 F A
R -

2.1 REEE
KRAFWEGE P BRERERE
BERQTMASRMNE S
BMEER RBBCRA ARG
(BeRE)WHTERE - 56
P HRERDIRRBE LKA ER
& WER A R BEVIRNK
BEEREME  ATHEESHB
BEREARBEFAEMS
AWM BEEENTBAE
(BETETER) MELEBET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements

are disclosed in Note 4.

2 EESTHBEEME @)
2.1 REEXE(F)
WMEKFEBBMEREERW

MR ERTETRAS THES
HEE  ENEEERELRE
BASEN S BRRBREPIT
EEHIE o P RmE R H Bk
=EEMENER - P RY
REVBREBERNBRZMG
HEEEE - 4R -

Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards

and interpretation

Amendments to HKFRS 2
HEBP B MEERFE2RAIEET

Amendments to HKFRS 4
HEBUBREERNE4RER]

(a) FHEAFTZER - #12ERRy1E
HFREZ &

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

AR RERNSXNRH 2B REE

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
HEBVBREEAE4RRESR—FHEAZ
ARV BHRELEAFEIRERMTE

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related amendments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

BT IEIREXERIZE R EHMTA

HKFRS 15

BB B ELERE 155 REBEFPEH WA RBE 2155

Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS") 40
HEBGTTERIFE405ERT

Hong Kong International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“HK(IFRIC)")
— Interpretation 22

&8 (BRMBHRE
—BREBENW®

BEZ89)

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle
iﬁiﬁﬁﬁx#ﬁz%ﬁ@ﬁﬂ T-FE
E-REBHzFENE

b4 FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

Transfers of Investment Property

HEREME

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

SNER B MIEN (B

Amendments to HKFRS | and HKAS 28

FRMBHRELENR SR REESHERE 2857 2 EF]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards

and interpretation (Continued)

The Group had to change its accounting policies and make
certain adjustments following the adoption of HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15 (Note 2.2). Most of the other amendments listed
above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in
prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the

current or future periods.

FEMGHRRME

2 FESHBEME @)

2.1 REEXE(F)

(@)

FRAFTER ~ £1ERA91E
KRB ZE (E)

RN B B 1S 3R 5 22 Al
BIRRBAMBRELE
BIZE I55%1& (M9sE2.2) -
AEBEERESECR
WAELE TR o EXFT
P KR Z BH MBS ETH R
BT HMEERNSELE
EfRFE - BRSBTS Y
BRI R ARREEEEEKN

B/ 488
T2 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following new standards and amendments to standards (b)
have been issued but are not effective for the annual period

beginning Ist July 2018 and have not been early adopted:

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 cycle

BEMBREEN _FT—RFE
T FREMFENE

HKAS 19
BAGTEAE 195

HKAS 28
BAGERF285

HKFRS 9
BAMBHRELRISEIH
HKFRS 16

BEMBRELELF 657

HKFRS 17
BAMBHMELERS 175

HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 23
B8 (AR BREREEZES)
— iR 235

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
- \FHBRENRSIER

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8
HEBSEERE I RKX
BB ERESIRAIERT

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

HEBYHHREERF 105 R
BT ERF28RMER]
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FESHHERE @)

2.1 IREEXE (F)

LT RERAMEILIENE
HE-_FT-N\FtH—H
RB A B IR 4F 2 A A R
A R EAERMISET - AE
B IR PR

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS I, HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

HEBYBREERNEINR - BAEMBHREERF 15
BREEF 12 R BB G ERF2RAER]

Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement (amendments) '

FTEMERT ~ MRS AR (1BFT)

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (amendments) '

REERRIRAERE 2 RIS (EF])'

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (amendments) '

BB AMEZBNFSEWER])

Leases '

HE!

Insurance Contracts *

RIRA R
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments '

P E THEE M 2 SR 1R

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting ?

BB E B SER?

Definition of Material 2

BEAXRHER?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture *

REEEEBENAHEEARZHANEELESTE"



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

()

The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the annual period
beginning Ist July 2018 and have not been early adopted:
(Continued)

" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2019

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2020
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 202 |
@ To be determined

The Group has completed an assessment of the impact of the
new standards and amendments to standards on its results of
operations and financial position. However, none of the above
new standards and amendments to standards is expected to
have a significant effect on the financial statements, except the

following set out below:

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost
all leases being recognised on the consolidated statement
of financial position by lessees, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and
a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only

exceptions are short term and low-value leases.

FEMGHRRME

2 FESHBEME @)

2.1 REEXE(F)

(b)

AT RERAMHEILIFNE
BE-_ZFT-\$tA—H
FE B B K B T AR RO T
AR ERIMERT - A%
BRI PR : ()

O BZE-AFE—A—
B 4B B 4 R HARE AR
@ BZTEZTF—A—
B 4B B 4 R HARE AR
) BE-ZE-—F—HF—
B B B 4 R HARE AR
@ REEE

AEBEE TR FHE
AR ERIMERTH A&
IZ% & N AR B

HEITRHE o LEFFER
&ﬂﬁd%@ﬂﬁ%KQ
HARKENE G EHRE
ERERTE - AT
AR

BEHNBEHEERE 6
#—HE

%%Wﬁ#cpfﬂ%m
ER T —RNF— A8
%°mm%%&ﬂﬁﬁ%
ZED IR - MEBE
BB AR AERAMEA
KGQM%#R%W%
R o IRIZFZIEFEI LA -
BE(FRBEEHEE &
M EENHEEz2HE
& T LATERR o ME—HIHN
ERAREEEZHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

2

68

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the annual period

beginning Ist July 2018 and have not been early adopted:

(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once HKFRS |6 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding ‘“right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would

continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease

term.

FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

()

The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the annual period
beginning Ist July 2018 and have not been early adopted:
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the consolidated income statement

over the period of the lease.

As disclosed in Note 32, as at 30th June 2019, the Group's
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amount to HK$9,156,000. Of these
commitments, HK$1,227,000 relate to short-term and low
value leases which will both be recognised on a straight-line

basis as expense in profit or loss.

FEMGHRRME

FESHHERE @)

wRELE ()

AT RERAMHEILIFNE
BE-_ZFT-\$tA—H
FE B B K B T AR RO T
AR ERIMERT - A%
B IR R IR ()

EEYBEREERE |6
% —HE (&)

ERMBHRELASE 6
R ERFEAKBEIER
BRTRAAKERENY
% BEERBHEHEAR
AREETRIE - et
AMEREREREE
REEEN YRERE
HRGFAKRERTHER
FERRR ]

B EER2 TR - R
T—NAEXA=Z+H &
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the annual period

beginning Ist July 2018 and have not been early adopted:

(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

For the remaining lease commitments, the Group expects
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$7,315,000 on Ist July 2019. Overall net current assets will
be HK$3,551,000 lower due to the presentation of a portion

of the liability as a current liability.

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory
adoption date of Ist July 2019. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate

comparative amounts for the year prior to the first adoption.

There are no other new, amended or revised standards that
are not yet effective that are expected to have any impact on

the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on

foreseeable future transactions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and HKFRS
Customers” on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(@)

Impact on the financial statements

“Revenue from Contracts with

The following tables show the adjustments recognised for

each individual line item. Line items that were not affected by

the changes have not been included.

30th June 2018,

FEMGHRRME

2 FESHBEME @)

22 ERBERHRE
AM TR EBRAT BT BRE
ZRFEIF M T E | BB
R EERE ISHIKAR

Fa

MZBAIBEAEEES

MBHRITE -

(@)

LB
TR EREAL R
R2BE  FERDYE

ZHREBTBEREEA -

as originally st July 2018,
presented restated
—E-N\E§ HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 —E-N\F
RA=TH EBBHERE BEUBRE tHA—-H
BEREEZ5 ERIZ95 BRI 155 HE ]
HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THT THT T THIL
Consolidated balance sheet BEEERBR
(extracted) (Fsx)
Non-current assets FnBEE
Available-for-sale ("AFS”) A ENBEE
financial asset 2,000 (2,000) — —
Financial asset at fair value BAREBEFAEM
through other comprehensive FEMGENNBEE
income (“FVOCI") — 2,000 — 2,000
Deferred income tax assets ERHBEERE 7497 84 = 7581
Current assets MEEE
Trade and bills receivables BHRUFRRERER 284,292 (367) — 283,925
Non-current liabilities FRBAG
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEHEAE 6917 (6) — 6911
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables, deposit HibEMm - ERET &
received and accruals - KERER
contract liabilities -aH8E 6,613 = (6613) =
Other payables, deposit HiEMAH  ERET&
received and accruals - LERER
deposit received -BlETE — — 6613 6613
Equity 4
Retained eamings TRER A 351,881 (272) = 351,609
Non-controlling interest IR 24,826 (5) — 24,821
AFS financial asset reserve AN ENEEEREE 1310 (1310) - -
Financial asset at FVOCl reserve AR EBEFTAEM
2EBENHBEE
G4 — 1310 — 1310
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)
(b)  HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The
adoption of HKFRS 9 from Ist July 2018 resulted in changes
in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The new
accounting policies are set out in Note 2.11. In accordance
with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 9 (7.2.15) and
(7.2.26), comparative figures have not been restated.

(1) Classification and measurement

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") changes in the fair value of its equity
investments previously classified as AFS financial asset,
because these investments are held as long-term
strategic investments that are not expected to be sold
in the short to medium term. As a result, an asset
with a fair value of HK$2,000,000 was reclassified from
AFS financial asset to financial asset at FVOCI and
accumulated fair value gains of HK$I,310,000 were
reclassified from the AFS financial asset reserve to the
financial asset at FVOCI reserve on Ist July 2018.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(b)  HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Continued)

0

(i1)

FESHHERE @)

22 EFBEN®(E)
(b) BEHFEHEERZEI

#—eMITA (&)

Classification and measurement (Continued) 0]

There is no impact on the Group's accounting for

financial liabilities.
Impairment of financial assets (1)

The Group has two types of financial assets that are
subject to the new expected credit loss (“ECL") model
of the HKFRS 9:

= Trade receivables: and

— Other financial assets at amortised cost

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes
of assets. The impact of the change in impairment
methodology on the Group's retained earnings and

equity is disclosed in the table in Note 2.2(a) above.

While short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment requirements of

HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

PR E (B

HAEENHHE

(L] N 2. 480
EEtUESLE -

BB EERE

REBEMBY B
BERABTHAA
BB HRELERF
IR IR

BRA

- EBZRE:
K

—  REHKAT
BRZ B b EA TS
BE

AEBERERS
BT RS 2R B9 5%
CHEEI =3V
EBZRBERE-
V=R ERDr L IE SN
EEZREB BT R
BamEHFED
A EMFE22(a) 2
5| R AR o

RBEERRE R
ReS@MmAEST
BB B HmE LA
FIMZBERTE
HEE & 2 R EE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(b)  HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected provision for impairment for all trade

receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. On that basis, the
loss allowance on trade receivables as at st July 2018

was determined.

The loss allowance on trade receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past histories, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates

at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHERESE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

22 EEHRERE (H)

(b)  HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Continued) (b) BEEHBHHEEREI
-2 IR (&)

(i1)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i)

The loss allowance on trade receivables as at 30th June
2018 reconcile to the opening provision for impairment

on Ist July 2018 as follows:

HBEEERE (&)

RZE-N\FERA
=tHENESEK
REBREER =
EZ-N\F+tH—H
B EREEED
HERWT -

Loss allowance on

trade receivables

= 5 UK
B R
HK$' 000
THIT
At 30th June 2018 calculated RZZE—-—NFRA=1THIRE
under HKAS 39 BRI ERIEIRTE (4,389)
Amount restated through FRFNRBENEINN SR
opening retained earnings (367)
Opening loss allowance on trade R_ZE—-N\F+H—-BRE
receivables as at Ist July 2018 BBV BHREEAEIRTE
calculated under HKFRS 9 WFE 5K EERE (4,756)
Other financial assets at amortised cost REHAARTEZ
Hib B 15 & B
Other financial assets at amortised cost include bills and HEERATELZ
HitwH B EERRE

other receivables. The Group has assessed the expected
credit loss model apply to the bills and other receivables
as at Ist July 2018 and the change in impairment
methodologies has no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements and the opening loss

allowance is not restated in this respect.

FE U R 18 K H Al 8
Wk - AEEE
HEARZ-ZZ-N\
FLA-HEKE
B R E AW R
BEHEEBRR
A - MRETEE
BHAKREZEER
MBEBRRLER
g HERMLES
HIEE R
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(c) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers” deals
with revenue recognition and establishes principles for

reporting useful information to users of financial statements
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from an entity's contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains
control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct
the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service.
The standard replaces HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 1|

“Construction contracts” and related interpretations.

The Group has adopted HKFRS |5 from Ist July 2018 which
resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments
to the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. In accordance with the transition provisions of
HKFRS 15, the Group has adopted the modified retrospective
application, under which the cumulative effect of the initial
application is adjusted to the opening balance of retained
profits on Ist July 2018 and no comparative figures are

restated.

HKFRS [5 replaces the provisions of HKAS 18, which
resulted in changes in presentation of contract assets and
contract liabilities. As at Ist July 2018, deposits received of
HK$6,613,000 has been reclassified as contract liabilities,

included in other payable and accruals.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has no material impact to the
Group's consolidated financial statements other than changes

in disclosures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation

(a)  Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over

which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity

when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable

returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability

to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control

is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the

date that control ceases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are

measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured
at either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition
date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the

consolidated profit or loss.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to

conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change

of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also

recorded in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

23

2.4

Consolidation (Continued)

(©

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. It means the amounts previously recognised in
consolidated other comprehensive income are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss or transferred to another category

of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,

has been identified as the Executive Directors of the Company that

make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(@)

()

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“finance income” or “finance cost”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income

statement within “other gains, net”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as AFS financial asset and financial asset
at FVOCI, are included in consolidated other comprehensive

income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities

(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different from the

presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

income and expenses for each profit or loss account are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the

rate on the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in

consolidated other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition

of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange

differences arising are recognised in equity.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company

are reclassified to consolidated profit and loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and

are not recognised in consolidated profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
- Leasehold land classified as finance lease Shorter of the remaining

lease term or useful life

2% - 2.5%
Shorter of the unexpired

- Buildings
- Leasehold improvements

lease term or 20%

- Machinery and equipment 12.5%
- Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
- Motor vehicles 20%
- Tools and moulds 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are

recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property
carried at fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of the
property at the date of transfer is recognised in revaluation reserve.
Subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment property are
recognised in the income statement as part of other gains/losses. If
an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to use the land on
which various plants and buildings are situated for a period from 42
to 50 years (2018: 42 to 50 years). Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the

period of leases.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at cost, including

related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in
fair values are recorded in the consolidated profit or loss as part of

a valuation gain or loss in “other gains, net".

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment

property and is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Intangible assets — Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired
technical know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives of five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBER#ESE #)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.10 FMBEENRE

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.
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FEMGImRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

88

Financial assets

(@)

Classification

From Ist July 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in

the following measurement categories:

= those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit

or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when

its business model for managing those assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the

Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value

through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in

their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash

flow characteristics of the asset.

= Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated

income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11
(©

Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in consolidated income statement as “other
gains, net” when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in “other gains,
net” in consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not reported separately from

other changes in fair value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11
(@)

(e)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment

From Ist July 2018, the Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from

initial recognition of the receivables.

Accounting policies applied until 30th June 2018

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for those with maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables include
“trade and bill receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”,
“restricted bank deposits” and “cash and bank balances” in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11
(e

Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied until 30th June 2018 (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting

period.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. AFS financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for

impairment.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in

consolidated other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(e)

Accounting policies applied until 30th June 2018 (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the consolidated profit or loss as gains

and losses from investment securities.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss when the Group's

right to receive payment is established.

If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted investments), the Group establishes fair value by
using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm'’s length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis,
and option pricing models refined to reflect the specific

circumstances of the issuer.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the

counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EFEEHBERBE@
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued) 2.1 MBEE (&)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 30th June 2018 (Continued) (e) BE_FT—/NFNH=1
HEBr &5 B (&)
Impairment JR1E
Assets carried at amortised cost R AR R
BE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or

group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

Financial assets (Continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 30th June 2018 (Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the

loss is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated profit

or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTBRBE@®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued) 2.11 BBEE (&)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 30th June 2018 (Continued) (e) BZE=ZF—NFNA=F
HEBH &5 B (&)
Impairment (Continued) JBl1E (4E)

—  Assets classified as available-for-sale - PDER/RFMHLER

B
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period AEBEBREG—WE
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset HARTHEDFE
or a group of financial assets is impaired. EHBBRERAX—
MBEEARX -
BEEMLIRRE -
In the case of equity investments classified as HROoBERAHLE
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the ENRRRE &
fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence FRABEOKNE
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists EsRAKEER
for AFS financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured EAE  NeE
as the difference between the acquisition cost and FEKRENF
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that B EAHEHES
financial asset previously recognised in consolidated MEEFELEFR
profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised B REEE (R
in the consolidated profit or loss. Impairment losses [ BN RN
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss on equity RnEBENER R
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated ZMBEE 2T
profit or loss. EEmERNE

R EEETE)
BiEmT kI E
mEBEmALE -
EfrBEERNER
MR T ENRE
BEEIGBERERSE

e m o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

2

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Derivative financial instruments

2.13

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gains or
losses depends on whether the derivative is designated and qualified
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. Assets and liabilities are classified as current if expected
to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as

non-current.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for
hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated

profit or loss within “other gains, net”.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as

non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less loss allowance.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and bank overdrafts, if any. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables) are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of
tax, directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Borrowings and borrowing costs

2.19

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

|2 months after the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

()

(©

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be

utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)  Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme
is a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further legal or constructive obligations to pay further

contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the
MPF Scheme, the Group and its relevant employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income with a maximum of HK$1,500 per month,
as appropriate, as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and

immediately vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution
schemes for its employees in Mainland China. Contributions
are made by the Group on a monthly basis to those
state-sponsored retirement plans based on a percentage of
the relevant income of the relevant employees. The Group
has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

retired employees.

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits
expenses when they are due and are not reduced by
contribution forfeited by those relevant employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a

cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Employee leave entitlements

(©

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liabilities for annual leaves as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

share-based
“Share Option Scheme™). The fair

The Group operates an equity-settled,
compensation plan (the
value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, including any market
performance conditions; excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting conditions; and including

the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
performance and service conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

2.21

(©

(@

Share-based compensation (Continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)

and share premium when the options are exercised.

Under the terms of the existing Share Option Scheme of the
Group, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible
participants to take up share options to subscribe for the
shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. No share options were granted or exercised
during the year. As at 30th June 2019 and 2018, there is no

share option outstanding.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of
bonus plan are expected to be settled within twelve months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when

they are settled.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that

an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

221

222

2.23

Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision

due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated profit or

loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When the Group leases out properties under operating lease,
the properties are included in the balance sheet as investment
properties (Note 2.8). Revenue arising from properties for leasing
purposes under operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the lease period (Note 2.24).

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government
grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the

costs that they are intended to compensate.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

FEETEHREE @)

2.24 Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good to a customer, which
is when the customer obtains control of a good, has the ability
to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits from that good. If the control of the goods and services is
transferred over a period of time, the Group recognises revenue by
reference to the extent of progress toward completion in fulfilling

its performance obligations during the entire contract period.

For the amounts of revenue recognised for goods transferred
and services provided, the Group recognises any unconditional
rights to consideration separately as a receivable and the rest as
a contract asset, and recognises loss allowance on the receivable
and the contract asset based on ECL; if the consideration received
or receivable exceeds the obligation performed by the Group, a
contract liability is recognised. The Group presents a net contract

asset or a net contract liability under each contract.

Contract costs include costs to fulfill a contract and of obtaining a
contract. The cost incurred for providing services by the Group is
recognised as the costs to fulfill a contract, and is amortised based
on the progress towards completion of the service provided when
recognising revenue. The incremental cost incurred by the Group
of obtaining a contract is recognised as the costs of obtaining a
contract. For costs of obtaining a contract that will be amortised
within one year, the Group recognises it in profit and loss. For the
costs of obtaining a contract that will be amortised for more than
one year period, it is amortised in profit and loss based on same
progress towards completion as recognising revenue. The Group
recognises the excess of the carrying amounts of contract costs
over the expected remaining consideration less any costs not yet
recognised as an impairment loss. As at the balance sheet date, the
Group presents the costs to fulfill and of obtaining a contract, in the
net amount after deducting relevant asset impairment provisions, as

other assets.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24

2.25

2.26

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from sales of goods in the

consolidated income statement in accordance with below policies:

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has transferred
control over products to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products, the amount of sales can be
reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity. Revenue from sales is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate the likelihood and provide for sales return for the goods
sold at the time of sale. A receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before

the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans

is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group's and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company'’s
shareholders for final dividend and Board of Directors for interim
dividend.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group's financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
The use of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures
is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in order to manage those risks. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative

purposes.

(a)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China
with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"),
Renminbi (‘RMB™) and US dollar (“USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity's functional currency. The Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,

primarily with respect to USD and RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has a policy to require group companies to
manage their foreign exchange risk against functional currency.
[t mainly includes managing the exposures arise from sales
and purchases made by the relevant group companies in
currencies other than their own functional currencies. The
Group also manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group's net foreign exchange exposures
and has entered into certain foreign exchange contracts to
manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2018, the
Group had certain outstanding forward foreign currency
contracts to purchase USD (2018: purchase USD), details of
which have been disclosed in Note 24. Certain of the Group's
receivables, cash and bank balances, trade and bills payables
and borrowings were also denominated in foreign currencies,
details of which have been disclosed in Notes 23, 25, 26 and
29. Since the HK$ is pegged to USD, management are of the
opinion that the exchange rate risk exposure arising from USD

is relatively insignificant.

At 30th June 2019, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit (2018: post-tax profit) for the year would have been
HK$461,000 (2018: HK$291,000) lower/higher (2018: lower/
higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of foreign currency-denominated non-derivative

financial assets and liabilities.
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3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash
at bank. The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings carry at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
whereas those carry at fixed rates expose the Group to fair

value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing fixed
or floating rates should be drawn from time to time with

reference to the trend of changes in interest rates.

As at 30th June 2019, if the interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit (2018: post-tax profit) for the year would have
been HK$399,000 (2018: HK$730,000) higher/lower (2018:
higher/lower), mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on cash at bank net off with higher/lower interest

expense on floating rate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

(d)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to
its plastic materials which is dependent on the oil price. The
Group closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order

to determine its pricing strategies.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents and security investments with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers such as
trade receivables and other counterparty. The carrying amount
of these balances in the consolidated balance sheet represents
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its

financial assets.

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject

to the expected credit loss model:

- Trade receivables; and

- Other financial assets at amoritised cost

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and the restricted
bank deposits are deposited in major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which management
believes are of high credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution
and management does not expect any losses arising from non-

performance by these counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

()

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and
shared credit risk characteristics.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Impairment losses
on trade receivables are presented as impairment losses
within other operating expenses. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against

the same line item.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of customers and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the

ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

With the increased risk from the volatility of economic
climate in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group
has maintained a defined credit policy with tightened
risk profile and applied prudent policies to manage its
credit risk with its trade receivables that includes an
ageing analysis of trade receivables is prepared on a
regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise any

credit risk associated with receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

3

114

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

()

Trade receivables (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 30th June 2019
and Ist July 2018 (on adoption of HKFRS 9) was

determined as follows for trade receivables:

3 BRXRRERE®)
3.1 BMBERREZE (EF)
(d) 1EEERE (&)

()  EBZENK(E)
EZEELE R
Z-NAERA=T
BR=—_ZT—-NFLt
A—B (K#®EE
B mELERBE
k) ME SRR
REEEEET N
T~

Expected credit

Gross carrying loss rate Loss
amount HHEE allowance
REAE BEX EERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TER

As at 30th June 2019 RZZE-NFX A=A
Current BE 161,896 0.07% 13
Within 30 days 30BA 34,087 0.12% 4]
31 to 60 days 31-60H 14,156 0.37% 52
61 to 90 days 61-90H 1,615 5.17% 83
91 to 180 days 91-180H 869 8.15% 71
Over 180 days i@ 180H 4,480 98.21% 4,400
217,103 4,760

Expected credit

Gross carrying loss rate Loss
amount BEEE allowance
EmaeE BRx EREE
HK$' 000 HK$'000
THET TRT

As at Ist July 2018 R_E-N\FtH—H
Current HE 213,056 0.07% 149
Within 30 days 30BA 35493 0.10% 35
31 to 60 days 31-60H 10916 0.44% 48
61 to 90 days 61-90H 865 3.43% 30
91 to 180 days 91-180H 317 6.80% 22
Over 180 days B 180 H 5,720 78.21% 4472
266,367 4,756
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

()

Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at

30th June 2019 reconcile to the opening loss allowances

as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

BRREERE @)
3.1 BMBERREZE (EF)
(d) 1EEERE (&)

0]

EZ B (&)
R-ZZF—-—NEAXRA
=+THENESREK
R R 5 1R B s B
FHEEREENY
BRADR -

Loss allowance

for trade receivables

B 7 B E R RS
2019 2018
HK$'000  HK$' 000

TR TR

30th June — calculated under HKAS 39

NA=1THB - REFE

SR ERFE 39T E (4,389) (4,902)
Amounts restated through FERFEIRB &
opening retained earnings Epdll=nknx: (367) =
Opening loss allowance as at Ist July Rt HA—BONFIEBERE (4,756) (4.902)
Increase in loss allowance recognised & AR Bz E ERH
in profit or loss during the year B E BRI N (126) (1,188)
Receivables written off B 85 /& MR 4 1,786
Exchange difference ME =58 118 (85)
(4,760) (4,389)
Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented 2 5 WA E

as net impairment losses within operating profit.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited against the same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEBEER (&)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued) (d) 1=EREE (&)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) () EZENH(E)
Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade & 5 W R E B
receivables BIEETTBE

In the prior year, the impairment of trade receivables
was incurred when there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been

incurred) of the trade receivables.

The management of the Group considered the following

as indicator of loss event:

- significant financial difficulties of debtor

- probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation

The amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated

income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and
cash equivalent, bills receivables and other receivables.
Management considered that these have a low credit
risk and did not make any provision for these other
financial assets at amortised cost based on the historical
settlement pattern of these other financial assets
and the forward-looking recoverability analysis of the

counterparties.

As at 30th June 2019, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$397,328,000 (2018: HK$470,311,000).
Credit risk in connection with such guarantees is considered

to be minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e)  Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,

the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping

committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for
additions of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment,
settlement of borrowings, payment for trade and other
payables, and payment for operating expenses. The Group
mainly finances its working capital requirements through a

combination of internal resources and bank borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains

sufficient cash balances and adequate credit facilities to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and long-term.
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3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure
of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of
the Group. The Group also maintains a prudent level of
liquid assets and committed banking facilities to ensure the
availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected
and material cash requirements in the ordinary course of
business. As at 30th June 2018, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$586,659,000
(2018: HK$573,071,000) of which HK$397,328,000 (2018:
HK$470,311,000) was being utilised by the Group.

The tables below analyses the Group's financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flow, including interest payments computed using contractual
rates, based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the
maturity date of bank borrowings with a repayable on demand
clause is based on agreed schedule repayment set out in the
loan agreements, disregarding the repayment on demand
clauses. Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
Directors do not consider that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set

out in the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEBEER (&)
(e) Liguidity risk (Continued) (e) WmEBETELE (&)
Within |~ Between | Between 2
year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FR —-E@MFA MELFA B
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TR TER TER
At 30th June 2019 RZE—NE~A=TH
Trade and bills payables EIRNRRENER 56,979 = — 56,979
Other payables and accruals HineN R R ERER 18,091 — — 18,091
Bank borrowings RITEHE 409,452 — — 409,452
Total B 484,522 — — 484,522
Within ~ Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and>5 years Total
—fFA —EZMFA WMELFR ik
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THT THET THT THRT
At 30th June 2018 RZZ—-N\FXA=T+H
Trade and bills payables BIRNRRENER 86,059 — — 86,059
Other payables and accruals Hitn N R KRERER 25919 — — 25919
Bank borrowings RITIEE 374,898 3,176 — 378,074
Total B 486,876 3,176 — 490,052
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEBEER (&)
(e) Liguidity risk (Continued) (e) WmEBETELE (&)
The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial TRETASEABREE
liabilities that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant EEENTESRAE
maturity groupings based on the remaining period from LA B R - R
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. BFRHEEABRBZESR
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual FHA B RIAIBETS
undiscounted cash flows, based on exchange rates prevailing o ERABBHNSES
at the balance sheet date. AEBBENERBR 2R -
TRENEEREBRBE
FME XGRS
Within ~ Between |  Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FR —-E@FA MELFA ke
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TR TER TER
At 30th June 2019 RZE—NE~A=TH
Currency forward contract EEEHEH
~ Outflow — MR 46,470 30,980 — 77,450
— Inflow —mA (46,500) (31,000) — (77,500)
Total mg (30) (20) — (50)
At 30th June 2018 RZE-N\FRA=1H
Currency forward contract ERRHEH
— Outflow — 5N 26,985 — — 26,985
— Inflow - (27,125) — — (27,125)
Total kD] (140) = = (140)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payments to shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new

bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and bank balances.
Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated

balance sheet, plus net debt.

The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th
June 2019 and 2018:

3

B EREE &)

3.2

EXERERE
AEENESEEERE 2K
EARBEREEELE  URK
RRHEOHMSEMERTE
AREAE - RRERFREN
BAREBAREE SRR

AEEEREARE YRR
RERFNEDELHE - B
THFESHARELER A%
B R RE B TR A
BBE - BIOTHRIESHN
RITERK -

AEENABELREREE
AN otk bl 2R 42 BR (B 75 % BERR DA
REXGE - BB FELBE
EREHeRReHH - BE
rRl#Ezl (WEEEEAR
RFTSI) DB FER o

R=B—NFRB—N\FEX
A=+R AREZAELE
m :

2019 2018

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FTHERT FAT

Total borrowings (Note 29) wEE (MEE29) 406,977 375,529
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 25) B Re RIRE AR (H5E25) (93,601)  (117,716)
Net debt (T E 313,376 257,813
Total equity R 512,593 534,041
Total capital AR 825,969 791,854
Gearing ratio BEREELE 38% 33%

There was no material change of the gearing ratio during the year as

the Group closely monitors the overall capital structure.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the
balance sheet at fair value are required to disclose the fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level I)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,

as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets,
including cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivable and
deposits and other receivables, and the Group's current financial
liabilities including current borrowings, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals approximate their fair values due to their

short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the

current bid price. These instruments are included in level |.

FEMGHRRME
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AERHA) (£38)

AEERDHEHMEE CKEE
BRRERRITHES  BHE
WHEEKEE  2E REi
FEUR - A R AR &R B B0 B 75
BEERAMER  BEZEMN
RRENEE - EMEMNRR
BiRER  ARERRAZIH
mEERAEERE

EEREMSEENSMTAL
AABERBEERNTHESR
BEFI8R - & (E T BB A0 E 57
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument

is included in level 2.

If one or more of the inputs is not based on observable market

data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no transfers of financial assets between level | and level

2 fair value hierarchy classifications.

As at 30th June 2019, the Group's financial asset at FVOCI and
derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial
instruments. Disclosures relating to investment properties that are
measured at fair value are set out in Note 8. As at 30th June 2019,
the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
performed the valuation of the available-for-sales financial asset
by the use of discounted cash flow model based on the market
conditions existed at balance sheet date and business forecast
provided by management. Specific valuation technique used to value
the derivative financial instruments includes using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date to discount back to the present
value. The key unobservable data includes the interbank forward

exchange rate and the volatility of forward exchange rate.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBERREE @)
Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DAARBEME (HF)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for TRBREZ_ZE—NLFA
the year ended 30th June 2019. =StHLEEEFEIE2®MIA
HEE -
Financial
asset
AFS at FVOCI  Derivative
financial EAREE financial
asset st AEMH instruments
AfHE 2EKEN & Total
BHREE HMKEE ERIA it
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000
T#&RT T TERr TER
Opening balance Bk 2,000 — — 2,000
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RE B B EERF 5%
of-7 (2,000) 2,000 — —
Settlements wE - — (1,769) (1,769)
Loss recognised in other EEMZEKRERNERE
comprehensive income — (323) — (323)
Gains recognised in profit and loss ERRERN R = = 1,695 1,695
Closing balance Hik i er — 1,677 (74) 1,603
Total gains for the year included in profit F&FEMEBENEE
or loss for liabilities held at the end of ~ Bz - BIEEBEKA
the year, under “other gains, net” [Hfles — 58] H - - 1,695 1,695
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FEMGImRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

B EREE &)
33 DAREEMGE ()

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for LRTARBE_Z—-N\FERH
the year ended 30th June 2018. :+E|JJ:¢EW%3QEPEI
BEREEHK -
AFS Derivative
financial financial
asset instruments
A E T Total
HBEE $RIA it
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TET TET TR
Opening balance IR 2,000 (29) 1,971
Settlements rE — (1,805) (1,805)
Gains recognised in profit and loss HERAER U — ,834 834
Closing balance HAR A ER 2,000 = 2,000
Total gains for the year included in profit or FRIFHHBENFE
loss for liabilities held at the end of the ~ #li% + BIEEBRRHA
year, under “other gains, net” [E@W” —FE P — [,834 257
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 3.4 EBHEFBKEEMNERE
As at 30th June 2019 and 2018, there were no financial assets or N-TE—NFEFRE T \FEX

financial liabilities which were subject to offsetting, enforceable

master netting or similar agreements.
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4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)  Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment with reference to the estimated periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from use of
these assets. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will adjust the depreciation
charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or

non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and
actual residual values may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and
residual values and therefore depreciation expense in the future

periods.
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FEMGImRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations require

the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group's financial
position and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to

the consolidated income statement.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4

JU DGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)  Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined

at each balance sheet date by an independent professional valuer by

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

ERGeHEET R Al @)

(c) BFAREYRZAAEE
BEREMEZ DR BEIRE
—E%&E B E5 BB FEF

reference to comparable market transactions and where appropriate HHEZ2EZTLR 2T HR
on the basis of capitalisation of the passing rentals of the current 5 HHEBATHEERE

leases based on the capitalisation rates including the outgoings. This
methodology is based upon estimates of future results and a set of
assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and future
economic conditions. Details of the judgement and assumptions

have been disclosed in Note |8.

(d)  Impairment of receivables

NIRHHESIZE RS MEEMAY
WERMEEBEFREREETE ©
WHEDBERERRERZ
CRHPEEEL S EIF TS
Bz BR - B A RERE
ZFEERKIRE I8P o

(d) JEWFRE

The loss allowances for receivables are based on assumption about R BERELDEREH

risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement

in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the

Liﬁﬂ AERBERZR
o ANSRE P H B 1F R

impairment calculation, based on the Group's past collection history ﬂgj“ BEERBEHENRAHK

of each customer, existing market conditions as well as forward

B DRESEEFBEZK

looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the Rk ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬂ%&x

key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(d).

REMBMANBIEEGEE - FrfE
A F ZEBRRZMEANFER
BIaE3. 1 (d)F I -
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FEMGImRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e

0

Wiite-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net
realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
variable selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories are
recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
downs of inventories is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations
during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax

provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When
the expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimates have

been changed.
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REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

EFENZBARDEHER

2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
T THET

Revenue from contracts with customers EFAHZBA
Sales of goods HEE M 1,852,680 1,994,880
Provision of logistic services REWRRE — 433
1,852,680 1,995,313

The Group derived revenue from the sales of goods at a point in time.

Liabilities related to contract with customers

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with

customers:

BREFEXZRIE

AEECHRATHERELPANZ
BfE:

As at

30th June
2019
R-ZB-N%F
~B=1+H
HK$’000
TER

EIARMEMNRERRE
ERZANEE

Contract liabilities, included in other

payables and accruals

4,053

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the

current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

TREFBEHRARGEEES D
BERRNBAZE -

2019
HK$’000
TET
Revenue recognised that was included FAFNENEEEHERRRA
in the contract liabilities balance at
the beginning of the year 6,613

There are no unsatisfied nor partially unsatisfied performance obligation

that has an original expected duration of one year or more.

B E—-FIA A RTER AR
MARTER KD R TKEHIEE °
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FEMGImRME

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and

engineering plastic products.

The chief operating decision-maker (‘CODM") has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined
the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM
that are used to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM
considers the business from the operations nature and the type of
products perspective, including the trading of plastic materials (‘Trading”),
manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and compounded plastic
resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering plastic products

(“Engineering plastics”) and other business activities (“Others").

Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms
and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parties.
Information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent

with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of revenue and operating profit including corporate expenses,
which is in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable

segments for the year ended 30th June 2019 is as follows:

FEMGHRRME

EFENZBARDEHER

(&)

BE_ZT-NFRA=TRHLFE
RUGERFRLERREZTZIW®

EDWERIT :
Engineering

Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 2Rl IRER Htto EE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET  FET TR TER  TER

Turnover =
— Gross revenue —DEBEE 1,392,245 299,667 218,008 — 1,909,920
— Inter-segment revenue — Db E (55,143) (1,963) (134) — (57,240)
Revenue from external customers  JMEB% P Wizs 1,337,102 297,704 217,874 — 1,852,680
Operating (loss)/profit w2 (BR),/&F (12,857) 15,365 19,130 1,181 32,819
Finance income MR 104 934 5 — 1,043
Finance costs HBER (16,242) (1,227) (1,508) (188) (19,165)
(Loss)/profit before income tax ~ BrEAT (B51E),/ & (28,995) 15,072 17,627 10,993 14,697
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FEMGImRME

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEF&AHZWARDEBE R
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) (#&)
HE_Z—NWEFA=1+HIFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2019 is as follows: (Continued) RHELGEFCEREE 225K
ESEERIT : (&)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable

Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 2Rl IRER Htto EE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEE TR TET  FER  TER
Other information: Hib &R :
Additions to non-current assets  FERE)EEIE N
(other than financial (BRemTAR
instruments and deferred BETRIEEEIN)
tax assets) 732 3,461 5,058 76 9,327
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRE
plant and equipment e 922 7,933 9,043 516 18,414
Amortisation of leasehold land MET Rt
and land use rights 15 Rt 2 # 5 357 186 32 78 653
Provision for impairment of BFERE
inventories, net B - F8 4,074 45 24 741 4,884
Loss allowance on B o RN EBEE
trade receivables |14 10 10 (8) 126
Fair value gains on derivative TEERMIA
financial instruments ArBEERE (1,695) — — — (1,695)
Fair value losses/(gains) on RENEAAEBE
investment properties BB/ (M) 405 (1,364) — (15,050 (16,009)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable

segments as at 30th June 2019 is as follows:

FEMGHRRME

BEEFEHNZRARDEHER
(#)
R-TE—hFENA=+HEMHRLE
FEEREE 2] RHREDHE
R

Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EGE IREN Hity r&EH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$ 000
FET T FET TET TET
Segment assets NEEE 431,322 301,566 143,505 143,480 1,019,873
Total assets BEE 1,019,873
Segment liabilities NEEE (55,540) (27,072) (13,735) (3.956)  (100,303)
Borrowings 3= (357,672) (23,275) (26,030) — (406,977
Total liabilities BmaR (413,212) (50,347) (39,765) (3,956)  (507,280)
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FEMGImRME

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable

segments for the year ended 30th June 2018 is as follows:

EFEHNZBARDHBER

(&)

BE T \FRA=TRHLFE
REGCERERLERKE 2253,

EDFERT ¢
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 ERE  IRBH Hith A5HE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FHET FHET FTAT FHET
Turnover =
— Gross revenue — DEBEHE 1,491,695 327,781 239,759 441 2,059,676
— Inter-segment revenue — DHEbEIHE (60,217) (3,051) (1,087) (8) (64,363)
Revenue from external customers SN ERE P U S 1,431,478 324,730 238,672 433 1,995,313
Operating profit REHR 37,138 12,536 25,258 5,505 80,437
Finance income g6 95 444 14 - 553
Finance costs HBER (11,539) (1,247) (1,570) (205) (14,561)
Profit before income tax BRAT AT A 25,694 11,733 23,702 5,300 66,429
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FEMGHRRME

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEEFESHZWARDBER
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) (4)
HE-_Z—\FNA=1+BILFE
BHOEEQBREE T 2R
EAMERINT : (F)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable
segments for the year ended 30th June 2018 is as follows: (Continued)

Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
L) EeH  IiREH it KEE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR TET TR TR TRT
Other information: HinEH -
Additions to non-current assets FERBEELZM
(other than financial (heEmIAK
instruments and deferred BETRIEEEIN)
tax assets) 827 12,352 [1,150 422 24,751
Depreciation of property, I ER
plant and equipment e 877 6,763 8,655 513 16,808
Amortisation of leasehold land MET Rt
and land use rights E R B 374 195 32 78 679
Provision for impairment of BERE
inventories, net - F8 323 2,171 1,005 — 3,499
Loss allowance on B ORI EREE
trade receivables — 58 — 1,130 188
Fair value gains on derivative fTESMIA
financial instruments ArBEERE (1,834) — — — (1,834)
Fair value losses/(gains) on REVELR
investment properties BEERE,/(Kas) |71 (238) — (12,630) (12,697)
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A F5ER R

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable

segments as at 30th June 2018 is as follows:

5

Trading Colorants

L)

A

HK$' 000 HK$'000

BEFEHNZBARSHER
(#&)
RZTE—-N\FAA=+HRHLE
J*%«%J&%%ZTEE\J#&%Q—EB%
BT -

Engineering
plastics Others Group
TRREH At KEE

HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET TET
Segment assets DHEE 450,909 307,647 161,283 129,756 1,049,595
Total assets BEE 1,049,595
Segment liabilities SHEE (89916)  (26946)  (19257) (3906)  (140,025)
Borrowings e (315947)  (23810)  (278%)  (7876)  (375529)
Total liabilties weE (405863)  (50756)  (47.153)  (11782)  (515554)

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external
customers from Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2019 is
approximately HK$950,763,000 (2018: HK$987,243,000), and the total of
its revenue from external customers from other locations (mainly Mainland
China) is approximately HK$901,917,000 (2018: HK$1,008,070,000).

At 30th June 2019, the total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately
HK$179,050,000 (2018: HK$169,796,000), and the total of these non-
current assets located in other locations (mainly Mainland China) is
approximately HK$ 116,704,000 (2018: HK$122,761,000).

FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

AEBUESREM HE-T—
NEXA=+BILLFEREEEZ
HNER & P W 2 49 45950,763,000% 7T
(=Z—/\£ :987,243,000/87T) * M
REHME (EZRPEANM) 2
HNER R P W 2 49 43 901,917,000 7T
(ZZ—/\£F : 1,008,070,000/87T) °

—NEXNABE=1+8 " Ber
TEARBEEBBEBEEINMINEEZ
JEM B E EE 4975 179,050,00058 7T (=
T — \4F : 169,796,000/ 78 ) » Mz
REMME (EZ AR ERH) 21t
EIERBEELNE16,704,00078 7T

—T— )\ 1 122761,00087T) °
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FEMBERRME
RENTAL INCOME 6 HEETWA

2019 2018

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

TER FET

Rental income i ON 7,442 6,603
Outgoings in respect of investment properties that generate rental income AEAHSWANRKRENMEZIEHE
amounted to approximately HK$362,000 (2018: HK$1,656,000). & H£49362,0008 L (ZF— N

£ 1 1,656,0007T) ©

OTHER GAINS, NET 7 EHiblWam — FEE
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FEE AR
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note |8) REMENDA BERE (FE18) 16,009 12,697
Fair value gains/(losses) on forward foreign exchange HIEEERBZINERBAEH
contracts held for trading AR EERE /(BE)
~ Realised -BEEH 1,769 834
— Unrealised - KER (74) —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) & — P B 2w e (P sEs) — 398
Government grant (Note) B4R B (F5E) 1,418 ,148
Net exchange gains INEW 481 24
Others Hith 31 —
19,634 16,101
Note: Btz :
Pursuant to Mainland China local government policies, the Group received BETEAMEMERFRE, NEB
government grant amounted to cash of RMBI,248,000 (2018: RMB964,000), NETFHRER AR 7 &4 %P E R
equivalent to approximately HK$1,418,000 (2018: HK$1,148,000), from Mainland B BT AR I ER A ££ 1,248,000 A R &
China local government authorities to support the operations in certain Mainland (ZE#1,418,00087m) (ZE—)\F :
China regions with no special conditions attached. 964,000 AR ¥ (FE%)1,148,00057T))
7 485 BT 735 A AT R 1 2 3R & BURT 4 B DA XX
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A F5ER R

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 8
During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group disposed of its

entire equity interest in ILS Logistics Limited (‘ILS”) at a consideration

of HK$I.

ILS is principally engaged in the provision of information

system management services to group companies. As a result of the

disposal, a gain of approximately HK$398,000 has been recognised in the

consolidated income statement. The effect of the disposal is summarised

as follows:

HE — Mt A Bl W=
REBEZ_ZT—N\FAXA=THLHF
ER - AEELIBTZREHER
AR BR AT ([BEAYR]) 2P
FERER BAMREERAE
EREENRZAETERS - ALLIA
PEAEEDREERERERL
398,000 7T 2 Wz o WIEH ERI R
BRHENOT

HK$’ 000
Ti#n
Carrying amount of assets/(liabilities) disposed of: HERE /(AFE) RKAEA :

— Deferred tax assets - uUﬁlﬁéﬁ 19
— Cash and cash equivalents —-ReRkHeEHE 33
— Other payables and accruals - HtEAH R ERER (758)
Net liabilities disposed HEFEE (606)

Non-controlling interest transferred to Rt BR ERa ak
the consolidated income statement 208
Net gain on disposal & e F 398
Total consideration to be satisfied by cash of HK$| BRENRE I BTTX -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERE KR 2 EHE 33

FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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FE M RRME
EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 BMEES X
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TR TERT
Cost of inventories sold excluding manufacturing costs HEFERAN (TEEEEKE) 1,561,561 1,646,422
Amortisation of leasehold land and MHE L3 R b AEE s (E17)

land use rights (Note 17) 653 679
Auditor's remuneration BER e

— Audit services — ZER% 2,310 2,285

— Non-audit services — ERERTE 603 542
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BERREBIE 18,414 16,808
Loss allowance on trade receivables B RBREREE 126 l,188
Provision for impairment of inventories, net FERERRE -8 4,884 3,499
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BE kEHEH2 K (67) (108)
Employee benefit expenses, including EERAX L (BREZME)

Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) (PE=E14) 131,149 138,160
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings TiRBF REHERE S 10,450 9,361
Repairs and maintenance expenses BIERRERX 4,038 5850
Transportation and packaging expenses EHRBERY 26,137 30,164
Travelling and office expenses ERRBRERX 9,141 9,323
Utility expenses KERX 13,782 15,215
Other expenses Hin & 63,756 58,192
Total cost of sales, distribution costs and HEKA « DIHKARITH

administrative expenses Pt 1,846,937 1,937,580
Representing: Rk :

Cost of sales HERKA 1,659,821 1,741,381

Distribution costs 7 A 77,352 80493

Administrative expenses TB 109,764 115,706

1,846,937 1,937,580
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FEMGImRME
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142

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 10 MW= NE M
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERr TET
Finance income: B ES
— Interest income from bank deposits — RAFRFBWA 1,043 553
e o4 3
Finance costs: HMBER:
— Interest on bank borrowings —RITEEZHE (17,013) (13,086)
— Net exchange loss on financing activities - MEEBZIVEW = F (2,152) (1,475)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (19,165)  (I4561)
Finance costs, net MBER - #8 (18,122) (14,008)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE Il BIEXH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2018:
[6.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the
Group's subsidiaries established and operate in Mainland China have
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rate of 25% (2018: 25%), other than a subsidiary in Dongguan which
was certified as High and New Technology Enterprises and is entitled to
a concessionary tax rate of 5% for three consecutive years from 2018
to 2020. This subsidiary is entitled to re-apply for the preferential tax

treatment when the preferential tax period expires.

BAENGHIIRBEFAMEERT
BAEREES 2T A (22—
NE - B2 TRER) st ERE -
FEAMBIEDRERNSEBRFE
AR ST R 4 2 B A | 2 AN
EMstERBEMNERE > 2= 1+TH
ZE-N\F BHZ=TH)ZH
i E  BRAEE-—FAURRZEZ
MBARERE AR TR EY
AIZE-_FE—\FE-_E_TFFE
ZSFEAZTRAZEERE o JLH
BARIAIRNEERB R TARER
FUILIBEBER G LHE -

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement SEAEWRRRZBELTLEA
represents:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TER FHET
Current income tax: AEFRIA -
Hong Kong profits tax BEANER 2,113 2,011
Mainland China corporate income tax B A3 1R R PG Y 4,892 16,154
(Over)/under-provision in prior years TEERE(BE) /TR (362) 96
6,643 18,261
Deferred income tax (Note 30) EERIIE (PEE30) (3,224 (1,954)
3,419 16,307
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate

FEMGHRRME

BB H )

NEBEBBRBAEF 2 HEER
ERAEANEH I HEMSE

as follows: B ERAT
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER FET
Profit before income tax BR %t Al A 14,697 66,429
Tax charged at a rate of 6.5% (2018: 16.5%) BRE165%(ZF—\F : 165%)
AtEZBIR 2,425 10,961
Effect of different tax rates in Mainland China FEIAM AR E 2 152 4991
Income not subject to tax BARDZBA (3,663) (2,577)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ARz X 828 166
Tax losses not recognised AR BBER 5,288 2,377
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses EREAAERNTBER — (697)
Tax reduction (Note) PR HIR (Pl 2T ) (937) -
(Over)/under-provision in prior years FEERE (BB /TR (362) 9%
Unrecognised temporary difference AERE S EE 312) (10)
3,419 16,307
Note: BaE

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the profits tax rate for the first
HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits will be lowered to 8.25% for a Hong Kong
subsidiary. Profits above that amount will continue to be subject to the tax rate
of 16.5%. In addition, certain subsidiaries in Mainland China were subject a lower
profit tax rate at 5% on taxable income below RMBI,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,136,000), and 0% on taxable income on taxable income
over RMBI,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,136,000) but below
RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,409,000), and thereafter at a
fixed rate at 25%.

EHEBRAST  —RREBHOMN
B 25 &® 2,000,000 7T fEFF 5 F B A
FERREDBIEES.25%  HZHBIB
2,000,000 JT &) FE RT B FIE A 9 5l 4 4
B 16.5%EF o tboh + o B R b b 8
N A E R U = AT A 1,000,000 A R
B (EE41,136,000%7T) MR IR5%
PR - ERE WA= 1,000,000
ARE (FE41,136,000%7T) BTEA
3,000,000 A R ¥ (%{E#93,409,00074 7T)
BB 1 1 098 SRR - T Lk 18 /02649 Bl
1225% 89 [E 75 Bt R B o
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FEMGImRME

12 DIVIDENDS 12 RE
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TR TERT
Interim, paid, of Nil (2018: HKI.0 cent) AERERHRE
per ordinary share (ZZ—N\F : 1.058l) — 3,692
Final, proposed, of Nil (2018: HK2.0 cents) TR AR HR 2
per ordinary share (ZZ—N\F : 2081L) — 7,384
— 11,076
Notes: Mot -
(@) On 26th February 2018, the Directors declared an interim dividend of @ RZBE—NF-_A=+H E=H

144

(b)

(©)

(d)

HK1.0 cent per share, totaling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 31st
December 2017, which was paid during the year ended 30th June 2018.

On 27th September 2018, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share, totalling HK$7,384,000 for the year ended 30th June
2018, which was paid during the year ended 30th June 2019, and has been
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 30th
June 2019.

On 27th February 2019, the Directors resolved not to declare any interim
dividend for the six months ended 31st December 2018.

On 27th September 2019, the Directors resolved not to declare any final
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2019.

FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

EMRBE_T—tF+ A=+
— B b/ fE AR 3 AR = R
1O - 3£3,692,000% 7T © LIE
REERBEZZ—N\F~A=F+
BIEFEZREHNF DR °

by RZZE—N\FALA=Z+tH ESF
BHRZERPKREEFR2.081 -
7,384,000 7T ° LLIEHURAR B0
BARGERE T EEMRS
BEREE=_Z—NFA=1AH
IEFEZRB &M DA

(0 RIZEBE-NAF-_AZ+tHETZ
gL BEEIRIHBE—ZT—
NFE+ZR=+—BIEXEASK
ERIP RS -

(d RZZFE-AFAA-+ERBITZ
gL BEEIRATHEBE_T—
NFERA=ZTRHIEFESTREMMRK
HARZ . -
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EARNINGS PER SHARE 13

Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable

to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

FEMGHRRME

FREF

EA
GREAR BT IR A 7 IR
MR A NE BT LB Z T
BBEHE -

2019 2018
Profit attributable to equity holders of NG EY 3yl
the Company (HK$' 000) (F#T) 7,806 46,171
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FREETERR NETHH 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) BREREN (BRE) 2.11 12,51
Diluted e

Dilutive earnings per share for the years ended 30th June 2019 and 2018
equal basic earnings per share as there was no dilutive potential ordinary
share as at the years ended 30th June 2019 and 2018.

RZB-—NAFAA=Z=TER=-FT—
NERNA=1TH  AARLEAH
BEN2EBR - Bt REEZ
E-NERA=Z=TARZZ-N\F
NA=+THRLEMEFE - SK#E
BNEERNERELRER]

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 14 EERAXHL (BREESH
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) &)

2019 2018

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

T T

Wages, salaries and other allowances T& - 5o R H 2Rk 126,985 133,986

Pension costs BIRE AR 4,164 4,174

131,149 138,160

There were no forfeited contributions of mandatory provident fund
utilised during the year ended 30th June 2019 (2018: Nil) to reduce future
contributions. As at 30th June 2019, contribution of mandatory provident
fund totalling HK$ 195,000 (2018: HK$348,000) were payable.

REBEEZZE-—NFAA=ZTHLF
B W E) A2 PO FI A
BERF(ZE—N\F : £) - N=
T—NFEARNA=1+H " AFEITE
SRS 1950008 T (ZE—N
F 1 348,000 7L) HREES T »
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FEMGImRME

I5 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a)  Directors” emoluments

The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the

year ended 30th June 2019 is set out below:

15

EEZNnNERRSE
EEABZHME

(a) EFEHE
HE-_Z—NFA=+HLE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

FRES (FERFLAAENELR)

FEBUEEZMEMT

T RE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director’s

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employer's ~ HERAAT

and benefits contribution  EMEAR

inkind  Discretionary to pension ES 33

¥H - bonuses Housing scheme  HHEZHE
Fees gy BfNE allowance Exy fi%fid Total
Name of Director 3.2 he RENRIE Wi EERE BfeER Ehwe g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tn Fhn Tin TR TR TiEn

Executive Directors HiTEs

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) L (1) 1,665 2,500 318 = 18 = 4501
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FEKEE 1,665 2,500 318 - 18 - 4501
Dr. WONG Chi Ying Anthony (Note) ~ ETEBL (Fi) = 2374 206 = 14 = 2,59%
Madam LIU Sau Lai (Note) BAESL (i) = 1,883 145 = 18 = 2,046
Mr. NG Chi Ming REALE - 1,871 143 - 18 - 2,032
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen FARRE - 1,200 142 - 18 - 1,360
Mr. HUI Man Wai (Note) SR () = 690 = = 18 = 708
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey (Note) ~ SFAREZR (M) = 103 = = 18 = 1,041
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I5 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

15 BE2NRZNERZRSE
EBAEBZEHNE @)

(a) EFHL (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

FRES (FERFLAAENELR)

T RE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director’s

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employer's ~ HERAAT

and benefits contribution  EMEAR

inkind  Discretionary to pension ES 33

¥H - bonuses Housing scheme  HHEZHE
Fees B2 RfTlE allowance Exy fi%fid Total
Name of Director 3.2 he RENRIE Wi EEZR  Biezfix Eltme -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tn Fhn Tin TR TR TEn

Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFH{TES
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul fBSEE 250 - - - - - 250
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung B 200 = = = = = 200
Mr. CHING Yu Lung BingELs 200 = = = = = 200
Total % 3,980 14,041 1272 - 140 - 19433
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GEMBHRRMEE
|5 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 15 EEZNENBEERSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EERAESZME &)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EFHE (&)
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the BHEZZ-\FA=TAHI
year ended 30th June 2018 is set out below: FEBNEZSZMELT ¢
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
{ERES (RERADAFANBAR)
RERHN X SRS
Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
of Director's
other services in
connection
with the
management of
the affairs of
the company or
Salaries, its subsidiary
other undertaking
allowances Employers  HEEALR
and benefts contrbution  FEKBAA
inkind  Discretionary to pension MEBRE
- bonuses Housing scheme  EMEFRH
Fees Hfr2d afkE allowance E+H s Total
Name of Director EE2 e  REWNE KA FERY RiEZHR  EhoHE 2E
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEL TER TEn TER AL TEn TEL
Executive Directors HiEs
Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) AL (1) 1,620 2428 = = 18 = 4086
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FEKEE 1,620 2428 = = 18 = 4066
Dr. WONG Chi Ying, Anthony ATEET = 260 = = 18 = 2640
Madam LIV Seu Lai BABLL - 1841 - - 18 - 1,859
Mr. NG Chi Ming REALE - 1818 - - 18 - 1,836
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen FARRE - 1,070 17 - 18 - 1,205
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SFEMBImRME

I5 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)  Directors' emoluments (Continued)

—]

15 EEZNENEERSE

EBAEBZEHNE @)

(a) EFHE (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

fERES (TERARARANEAR)
REREMAREROHE

Other
emoluments paid
or recelvable

in respect

of Director's
other services in
connection

with the
management of
the affairs of

the company or

’\f

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

llowances Employers ~ SERALT

and benefts contrbution  FEKBAA

inkind  Discretionary to pension B

- bonuses Housing scheme  EMESRH
Fees Hfr2d afkE allowance E+H s Total
Name of Director EE2 e  REWNE KA FERY RiEZHR  EhoHE 2E
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEL TER TEn TAL AL TEn TEL

Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFH{TES
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul fRSEE 250 - - - - - 20
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung B 200 = = = = = 200
Mr. CHING Yu Lung EmEss 200 = = = = = 200
Total &g 3890 12207 17 - 108 - 16322
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FEMGImRME

I5 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

@)

(b)

(©

()

(e

Directors” emoluments (Continued)

Note:

Dr. WONG Chi Ying, Anthony retired as a director of the Company
on 22nd November 2018. Madam LIU Sau Lai resigned as a director of
the Company on 30th November 2018. Mr. HUI Man Wai and Mr. HUI
Yan Lung, Geoffrey were appointed as directors of the Company on Ist
December 2018.

No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2018: Nil). No
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year (2018: Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any Directors
during the year (2018: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to Directors as compensation for the

termination of the appointment during the year (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to or received by third parties for making

available directors’ services

No payment was made to any third parties making available the

services of them as a Director of the Company (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities

with such Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such Directors during the year (2018: Nil).
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15 BEE2HZEF

MEZRERE

EBAEBZEHNE @)

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

©

EFHE (&)
[k

Rt

BEFEBLIN T N\F+—A=
ToHRERRBZERTRL - B
FBLLIN T N\F+—A=+
HBEARAZESR - FFE
FEFFARLEER -_Z—N\F+
“HA—BZERRRAZES -

RAFERNL EESHENF M
E(ZFT-N\EF &) - RAFER
AN ER L S T A2 AR EE S5 R A
SHEREEERUZHE(ZF—
NE ) o

EFRIKEF
RAFERALLARESEZMHR
BAKBH(ZF—N\F: &) -

EEANRIEIET

RAFERLBRIEFEILE
EmRESREEAEN (=
E-N\F E)-

BIEHE FIRE T E =T 1€
Ry E1E
RAFEARL EIZHEFR

BimmsE =T RHOEERME
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BIEE  ZEZFEFZEHNZE
ABIERZEFAFETEIE
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I5 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

15 BEECHNRZNERZRSE
EBAEBZEHNE @)

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or

contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year (2018: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2018: four) Directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid and payable to the remaining individuals during the

year were as follows:

®

6

BEAERS  KHHARFNE
Atz
BT EFEMBRRMESS
ﬁfﬁZ?&%@l\ C REEARF
R KRR WEREEMS
&$%.Z%ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁ$A Rl E
FEESHEEEEPHERERX
TE@ZEE“% ZHHAEF
T—)\F: |-

BEREHHA L

REER - ERUKEHHA

T = (ZE-NF [

i) REF  HMEERNEX

2z HEE B TERS
FMALR EFEZHMFE

ZZDT-

2019 2018
HK$ 000 HK$' 000
FET FHT
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind ol B REYF S 4,187 4,050
Discretionary bonus MIBIEAL 1,548 1,620
Pension costs HESINGA PN 36 36
5,771 5,706
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MWEFHFME TIASHBENA:
Number of individuals
AE
2019 2018
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) R (B)

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 /87T - 2,500,000 7T
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 /7T - 3,000,000/ 7T
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T - 3,500,001 77T

No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of any office
in connection with the management of the affair of the Company

and its subsidiaries during the year (2018: same).

AEEALER EAAL (B
EERHEMER) XAIMEE
RIEEMASIIERRERM Z
BECE-NF: &)
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FEMBIRRMEE
16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 I3 BERRZE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
BELH BE  equipment RER vehicles moulds Total
RET  DERE  KBRRE  BOZEE hE IAREER g
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Tin Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
At Ist July 2017 RIT—tE
tA-A
Cost BA 117523 53657 185,667 19,131 8318 2,348 386,644
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE (43,700) (38931)  (161,305) (16,484) (6967) (1618)  (269,005)
Accumulated impairment ZitAfE - () (201) 1) - - (227)
Net book amount FEFE 73823 14721 24161 2626 1,351 730 117412

Yearended 30th june 2018 EZE-F-N\F
AAZTALEE

Opening net book amount BNRETE 73823 14721 2416l 2626 1,351 730 117412
Additions ) - 9,137 14,307 1,99 650 194 26,284
Disposals (& - (35) - () - - (36)
Depreciation ik (,738) (5213) (7,026) (1216) (500) (115) (16,808)
Currency translation differences & 5 %% 1537 139 531 4 3% 8 2291
Closing net book amount BREEFE 762 18,749 31973 3447 1,535 817 129,143
At 30th June 2018 RZZ-N\F
~AZTH
Cost B 120020 62,435 205,595 2017 8,747 2571 420,385
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (47,398) (43686) (173421 (17570) (7212) (1754 (291,041)
Accumulated impairment ZEtAE - - (201) - - - (201)
Net book amount REFE 72,622 18,749 31973 3447 1,535 817 129,143
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FEMBERRME
16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16 Y% - BMERRE @)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
RELH BE  equipment £BR vehicles moulds Total

LgF  WRKE  HEREE  BOZER AE IARKEA L
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

Yearended 30th june 2019 EHE_F-NF
NAZTALEE

Opening net book amount ~ BAIRAFE 72,622 18,749 31973 3447 1,535 817 129,143
Additions i - 4062 6,032 508 5] 177 11,570
Revaluation gain on property,  ¥1% * BE RiXfE
plant and equipment BRERENF
upon transfer to investment LERNE
properties (Note 18) GEAE) 2314 - - - - - 2314
Transfer to investment RENEEL
property (Note 18) (Frix1s) (2,698) = = = = = (2,698)
Disposals ik - (53) - (12) - - (65)
Depreciation ik (2,667) (5,954) (7.897) (1224) (539) (133) (18414)
Curvency translation differences B3 £% (1,955) (424) (1,074) (61) (#3) (15) (3.572)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 67616 16,380 29,034 2,658 1,744 846 118,278
At 30th June 2019 RIZ-NE
~A=tHH
Cost B 116,237 65,621 203,532 20848 8902 2628 417,768
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (48,621) (4941)  (174297) (18,190) (7,158) (1782)  (299,289)
Accumulated impairment ZitAE = = (201) = = = (201)
Net book amount REFE 67,616 16,380 29,034 2,658 1,744 846 118,78
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FEMGImRME

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$14,516,000 (2018: HK$12,808,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$133,000 (2018: HK$184,000) in distribution
costs and HK$3,765,000 (2018: HK$3,816,000) in administrative expenses.

As at 30th June 2019, the net book amount of property, plant and

equipment pledged as security for the Group'’s banking facilities amounted
to approximately HK$38,616,000 (2018: HK$40,767,000).

l6 Y% - - WMEKRE@#®)

WEEMI4,5160008T (=T —
J\EE 1 12,808,000087T) EBREE
SHERA - 133,000 T (=T — N\
& ¢ 184,000 7T) B EIEE D HK
AN J%3,765,0008 7L (ZF — )\ :
3,816,000/ 7T) B BIEEITHE N ©

RZT—HhFXA=1+H ~&H
BREF (BB EEA38,616,0008 7T (=
T — )\ : 40,767,000 7T) 2 ¥
¥ BELRBEERTRT A
REERBRTEE -

|7 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 17 &KL EAE
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent REBREEL R I EAES
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book amounts are BafRBENKCEMEERE - B
analysed as follows: EFESTAT -
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHERT TR

At beginning of the year F7) 18,399 18,531

Transfer to investment properties (Note |8) REWEEL (35 18) (1,052) =

Amortisation B (653) (679)
Currency translation differences M N ZE R (694) 547

At end of the year FR 16,000 18,399

As at 30th June 2019, the net book amount of leasehold land and land

use rights pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted

to approximately HK$2,948,000 (2018: HK$3,163,000).

154 x=iaEERA7 Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

RZFE—hFA=+H HEL
K2 o b 150 AR 42 B [0 (B 492,948,000
BT (ZF—/)\F : 3,163,000%87T)
EHEFTIRT - AASERSERTT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN e
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REWZE
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TRz TRT
At beginning of the year =) 141,380 127,801
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 7) REMEZ AR BENE (EE7) 16,009 12,697
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note |6) ME - BEREEEA (ME16) 2,698 -
Transfer from leasehold land and land use rights (Note 17) A& & -t {F AR A (FizE17) 1,052 -
Currency translation differences N AR (1,166) 882
At end of the year ER 159,973 141,380
As at 30th June 2019, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligation BE-Z-NAFXA=1THB XK
for future repair and maintenance (2018: Nil). BEE - T HREMRRRBED
EREK(ZT—N\F: &)
During the year ended 30th June 2019, a property was transferred from REBEE_FT-—NEFSA=THL
property, plant and equipment and leasehold land and land use rights FEA AEEN—FUXAY
to investment properties, upon the inception of an operating lease to a ¥ BEEREMEEL ML L
third party. Revaluation gain of HK$2,314,000, netted with deferred tax WEREEAREYME  EEK
expense of HK$627,000 was credited to other comprehensive income 2,314,000 7 - HIHELTH A
accordingly. 627,000/8 LR N B E = H FIAK &

MERT AR M2 EYES -
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FEMGImRME

18

156

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)  Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was

performed by the valuer, Chung, Chan & Associates, to determine

the fair value of the investment properties as at 30th June 2019 and

2018. The revaluation gains or losses are included in “other gains,

net” (Note 7) in the consolidated income statement. The following

table analyses the investment properties carried at fair value, by

valuation method.

18 REWE (&)
(a) R 1BESE

AR B IR A ) % e (i B BB
BR-ZE—AFEM_Z—N
FEXA=+BERITBILEE -
NETHEAAEE - EH%K
HABEBELEARNR
(T Efb s — B8 | R (BI3E
7) » TRMBBEEDITRA
REEAEHREYE -

Fair value measurements
at 30th June using significant
unobservable inputs
(Level 3)
RAR=ZTHAMAEANART
BEZRAEFHNAABETE

(%838)
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
Fib% Fi57
Recurring fair value measurements REMRABETE
Investment properties: REME
~ Industrial building units — Hong Kong ~ — TEABE BN — & 127,600 113,000
— Car park units — Hong Kong — BBy - FH 3,180 2,730
— Commerecial office units - HEPLEEL — RENM
and apartment — Mainland China 11,808 8,864
— Industrial building units — —IXREEN — FEANM
Mainland China 17,385 16,786
159,973 141,380

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers in/(out) of fair

value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year.

FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

@)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in investment properties

with fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) for the years ended 30th June 2019 and 2018.

FEMGHRRME

18 REWE (&)

(a) A IEEZEE(E)
TERRARBE-ZE—AER
—E—N\FAA=+AILLEE
AF A EAT T BREAHD
RBEHE(E3B)WREY

ET LR
2019

Mainland China Hong Kong Total

HEA B aE

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FER TERT TET

Opening balance & 25,650 115,730 141,380

Transfer from property, plant and equipment mE BERIEEA 2,698 — 2,698

Transfer from leasehold land and ME TR+ E RS

land use rights 1,052 — 1,052

Net gain from fair value adjustment AREERRRFE 959 15,050 16,009

Currency translation differences i3k (I,166) — (1,166)

Closing balance HIR AR 29,193 130,780 159,973
Total gains for the year included in the FRKREE  BFE
consolidated income statement, malkaERm B

under other gains, net g — 959 15,050 16,009

2018

Mainland China Hong Kong Total

At 30 et

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000

THET THET TRT

Opening balance HA A ER 24,701 103,100 127,801
Net gain from fair value adjustment AR EERBLDFE 67 12,630 12,697
Currency translation differences X =5 882 — 882
Closing balance S 25,650 115,730 141,380
Total gains for the year included in the FRRRFEEE  BEE

consolidatedincome statement, e R [ He

under other gains, net Wz — FE |+ 67 12,630 12,697
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FEMGImRME

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

Valuation process of the Group

The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$159,973,000 (2018: HK$141,380,000) as at 30th June 2019 and
2018 by Chung, Chan & Associates, an independent professionally
qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the locations and
segments of the investment properties valued. Certain of the
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
lease arrangements, further summary details of which are included in

Note [8(e) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The
finance department reports directly to the CODM. Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held between the CODM,

finance department and the independent valuer annually.

At each financial year end the finance department:

. Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

. Assesses property valuations movements when compared to
the prior year valuation report; and

. Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date

between the CODM, finance team and the independent valuer.

158 FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

18 REWE @)

(b)

KE EF 1 (8
AEBNKREMFERB IS
HEMBETE-ZE—NLFK
—E-NFARA=TBHEE
£159,973,0008 L (ZZE— N
141,380,000/ 7C) © UbiE
BB HBERITZEER -
WHFT A ENIRE M RE I ED
Hh B AN B BT AR AE R © B

“ﬁ%%uﬂ“ B ?%ﬁtﬁﬁ“ﬂ
TE=7 E—FTHBRES

,\ﬁ%ﬂx’zi‘%ﬁﬁa} 18(e) I EE ©

AEETBEARTBRE BB
HEIAEMNBEETR
A MR E R A EE LR
REER - BRKLERERSE
B BB R (L (ERD B & & s b B
M MR AR

EESEMBFEER - BB
s REHBIYMERSHHM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(©

Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally

determined using the income capitalisation method which largely

involves the use of unobservable inputs and taking into account

the significant adjustments on passing rentals of the current leases

and capitalisation rates including the outgoings (“Yields"). These

significant unobservable inputs include:

FEMGHRRME

18 REWE @)

(©) 1ZEFR
FMAEANTBERGE AEL

MAREEFE

AEEHNREMEAAEE-
RREMEEMGE - AT
ERATABRGA > TEE
ERAHENARKEERES
HERHNERME ([ES
RWERAE - LFERP

AERG AR

Fair value at

30th June Relationship of

2019 unobservable inputs

R=B-NE Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value

Description AB=tH technique inputs unobservable inputs EE 13PN

i ZDAEE fbERE  FTERBA OLE L I HAABENEE
HK$'000
TEn

Industrial building units — Hong Kong 127,600 Income  Unit passing rents  HK$9.03 — HK$ I 1.19 per The higher the rental value,

IS EEN -F% capitalisation  EFIFFHE  month per square feet the higher the fair value,

method YHRGRIGET and vice versa

Wiz ZlLI9ET  BESR ALEEES

RZIMA

Yields 2.63% — 3.28% The higher the Yields,

¥8% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

EREER  DMABEEE

R

Car park units - Hong Kong 3,180 Income  Unit passing rents  HK$5,000 — HK$8,475 per The higher the rental value,

fFefs - B

capitalisation
method

Yogt &

BRFERE
Yields

month per unit
BEUEAS0008T
EBATSET

582% - 8.78%

the higher the fair value,

and vice versa

HELS MEEER -
R

The higher the Yields,
the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

EREES  MABEEE

R
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FEMGImRME

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c)  Valuation technigues (Continued)

18 REWE @)
(© 1HERM(E)

Fair value at
30th June Relationship of
2019 unobservable inputs
RZB-n% Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs THBEHA
i ZRAEE fhERE  FAUBRERA FUBEBAEE HAABENBRE
HK$’ 000
TR
Commercial office units and 11,808 Income  Unit passing rents RMB61.74 - RMB65.2 per The higher the rental value,
apartment — Mainland China capitalisation  EfIREAE  month per square meter the higher the fair value,
BERAEBN - PENH method BYAXREA and vice versa
Y 61.74- 652 AR BEER AAEESRS
R
Yields 2.74% - 3.27% The higher the Yields,
ZEX the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
YRXHR ARBEME
R
Industrial building units - 17,385 Income  Unit passing rents RMBI12.57 per month The higher the rental value,

Mainland China
TEAEEN - PEAL

160
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capitalisation
method

WA

BAERE
Yield

per square meter the higher the fair value,

BYHABAR and vice versa
NS7TARE  HEES 2AEESS -
2 T8

10.29% The higher the Yield,

the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

ZRXHE AEEME
R
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FEMGHRRME

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REW= @)
(c)  Valuation techniques (Continued) (c) 1BEHMN (&)

Fair value

at 30th June Relationship of

2018 unobservable inputs

RZE-N\F Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value

Description ~A=1A technique inputs unobservable inputs RBEGA

it LR EE bR ATEREA AEEHALE HRABENERE
HK$'000
TR

Industrial building units — Hong Kong 113,000 Income  Unit passing rents  HK$9.03 — HK$ ! 1.19 per The higher the rental value,

IEREEN -FA capitalisation  EFIREME  month per square foot the higher the fair value,

method FYAREAI0ET and vice versa

g% EILI9ET  BEER 2AEEES:

RZIA

Yields 297% - 3.71% The higher the Yields,

ZEX the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

ZRZHE  ArBELE.

R

Car park units - Hong Kong 2,730 Income  Unit passing rents  HK$5,000 — HK$8,475 per The higher the rental value,
[EEf - FE capitalisation  EAIFRISH(E month per unit the higher the fair value,
method BEMUFAS00ETE and vice versa

Wiz g4k BESR AAEEES

R

Yields 6.87% - 10.17% The higher the Yields,

¥8% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
ZEXYE AR BEGE
R Z T8
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FEMGImRME

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REW= @)
(c)  Valuation techniques (Continued) (c) 1BEHMN (&)

Fair value

at 30th June Relationship of

2018 unobservable inputs

RZE—+F Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value

Description ~A=1A technique inputs unobservable inputs RBRGA

it ZRREE bR ATEREA AEEHALE HRABENERE
HK$'000
TR

Commercial office units and 8,864 Income  Unit passing rents RMB68.52 — RMB94.64 per The higher the rental value,

apartment — Mainland China capitalisation  EfIREAE  month per square meter the higher the fair value,

BEBAZEN - PEAY method GYARGRBARE and vice versa

Y EUMARE  HEMR AREEES

RZIA

Yields 321% - 443% The higher the Yields,

ZEX the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

ZREHE  ArBELE.

R

Industrial building units - 16,786 Income  Unit passing rents ~ RMB9.64 per month per The higher the rental value,

Mainland China capitalisation  EAIREM(E square meter the higher the fair value,

TEREEfM - PEAM method BEARGAIMAARE and vice versa
WA HELS  AMEESR -

R

Yield 8.56% The higher the Yield,

E8X% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
Ege MEEUE .
2 T8

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year. FABERMLEE(TEE -

’*F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(d) As at 30th June 2019, the fair value of investment properties
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$39,885,000 (2018: HK$35,322,000).

(e) The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

18 REWE @)

(d MZZE—AE~A=1+H &
& ) % BR T )R (E 4939,885,000
BT (ZZF—/\F : 35,322,000

BIT) EEM T RT

EHRSRITEE

C RAE

(e) BETABHENEERE -
K EEKBERAMNT -

2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
F#T TET
Not later than one year —ER 6,230 5014
Later than one year and not later than five years —FREDMERREF 11,051 [,101
17,281 6,115
25
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BEEE
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
T THET
Technical know-how SR psIE
Cost AR 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation Rt (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment RiRE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount BREDHE - -

During the years ended 30th June 2019 and 2018, the Directors assessed
the recoverability of the technical know-how and considered that the
carrying value of the technical know-how cannot be recovered through its

future use and full provision was made.

RBEE-FE—\K=_ZF—hLFA
=tHLEFEAN EFE RN
Mgz KEEELRAEEEEE
TAIEERREATRE - AtH

fEL 2 ERREE
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FEMGImRME

20 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

21

164

20

BASEFAREMEZEY
SNPMBEE AIHHE
MBEE

2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERT FHET
Financial asset at FVOCI: BARBESAEMZEKZER
WBEE :
Equity securities, unlisted FLmESER 1,677 —
Available-for-sale financial asset: A ENKEE:
Equity securities, unlisted FLmESER — 2,000

Financial asset at FVOCI represents a 3.6% (2018: 3.6%) equity interest

in an unlisted company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The

amount is denominated in HK dollar. The investment was classified as

available-for-sale financial asset in 2018.

SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2019 are disclosed
in Note 35.

(a)

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2019 was
HK$23,874,000 (2018: HK$24,826,000), of which HK$23,968,000
(2018: HK$25,930,000) was attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastics Materials Limited (‘“NHEPML"). The non-controlling interests

in respect of other subsidiaries were not material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of NHEPML of RMB2,263,000 (2018:
RMB1,374,000), equivalent to approximately HK$2,572,000 (2018:
HK$1,636,000), were held in Mainland China and were subject to
local exchange control regulations. These local exchange control
regulations provided for restrictions on exporting capital from
the region, other than through normal dividends or remittance of

revenue income through import/export companies.

FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

21

VR E AR S E W5
BERRREXBEARRBEM
ZIEMRBZAD 2 =N (ZF
—\F: B Z=FN) #EE o e
BUABTREM - RZT—-N\FZ
REDERAHEENKEE -

Ehg NG
R-B-AEAA=+AMHEEN
BRI FE R S RE -

(a) BEABIFEZEH

R_E—hERNA=+HMIE
70 ) #E 25 48 58 523,874,000
T (ZZF— )\ : 24,826,000/8
JT) » EF23,968,000 T (=
ZT— \4F : 25930,000/87C) B
RBETRRBRAERAAE ([
BT R ]) o B H b BB
Nl R SEE Sl S T E
j( o

BARH
BRETREERNES KR
3£2,263,000 ARE (ZZF—N
& 374000 ARE) (FEY
2,572,000 7T (=& — )\ F :
1,636,000/ L)) 17 BUEH =&
A - 8 H B HNE B B FT AR
E o WWEINEEFHRIKES
BE A B3R AN (3B 48 IE AR F
FaEiEE L O A FIE LS W8
BRAN) o



21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@)

Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material

non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the

subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the

Group.

Summarised balance sheet

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

21 MIEBATE (@)

(@)

BRI ()
ABERFEF s 091 B 2
A1 Z R 5 A #
AT R REERMN I
i 4 2 O BT JBB 2 B B 8 2 A 7S

WELEEBEX
NHEPML
BETREER
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
BT FTAT
Current e
Assets B 96,123 109,669
Liabilities B (42,272) (51,793)
Current net assets FERBEE 53,851 57,876
Non-current ERH
Assets BE 47,066 51,669
Liabilities &fE (207) (591)
Non-current net assets FIEREEE 46,859 51,078
Net assets FEE 100,710 108,954

Summarised income statement and statement of comprehensive

BB AR E Gl a7

income
NHEPML
RETIRER
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FRT AR
Revenue Wzt 217,943 239,798
Profit before income tax BR %t Al Al 16,770 23,156
Income tax expense HIAX (2,208) (4,908)
Post-tax profit BRL 1R 6 A 14,562 18,248
Other comprehensive income Hfvéralias (1,386) 740
Total comprehensive income Rl Ea ik 13,176 18,988
Total comprehensive income allocated to FRERaAERER
non-controlling interests Il 3,136 4519
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest SR FHEEHERRE (5,093) (3,094)
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GZEMBRRMEE
21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

22

166

(a)  Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

21 MIEBATE (@)
() BEABIIEIEEER ()

Summarised cash flows WEL T wEX
NHEPML
REIRER
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER TET
Cash flows from operating activities REZBZHTR
Cash generated from operations REXBMEEZHE 29,750 37,072
Income tax paid st (1,261) (5,660)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBMEEZFRE 28,489 31,412
Net cash used in investing activities REXFBAERAZFRE (5,057) (10,957)
Net cash used in financing activities MEXBHFERZFRE (17,342) (23,045)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents & RBEFE22M,/(RL) 6,090 (2,590)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FOzRekBeFHE 1,424 4010
Currency translation differences BN AR (200) 4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZAERREEHE 7,314 424

The information above is the amount before inter-company

WA B # AT E A ) AT

eliminations. HBEE -

INVENTORIES 22 FE
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THERT FAT
Trading stocks ECES Y 206,359 173,601
Raw materials R 74,855 81,710
Finished goods UK 38,037 34,847
319,251 290,158

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of
sales in the consolidated income statement amounted to approximately
HK$1,562,175,000 (2018: HK$ 1,646,422,000).

Provision for impairment of inventories amounted to HK$4,884,000
(2018: HK$3,499,000) for the year was included in cost of sales in the

consolidated income statement.

FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

RER A W ES K A S S B T
RERAIZEERAEGEHRDA
1,562,175,0008 L (ZZF— N\ F :
1,646,422,00058 7T) °

A& B AR E % 1H54,884,0008 7T (=
T—/\F : FELEFREE3,499,00078
TL) ZFEREEFERRE - WRERE
Wizk 5K A 8HE AR ARR o
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G EUMBHRRMAEE
23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23 BSEWIFREKRERE
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THT FET
Trade receivables 2 MR 217,103 266,367
Less: loss allowance B MR E R (4,760) (4,389)
212,343 261978
Bills receivable e 22,103 22314
234,446 284292

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

BIRUFNEEENTIEE S

currencies: B
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
THT FTET
HK$ BT 70,042 80,686
RMB AR 113,417 143,429
usD ey 33,644 42252
217,103 266,367

The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables

as the Group has a large number of customers.

The majority of the Group's sales were made with credit terms of 30

to 90 days. The remaining amounts are on letter of credit or bank's

acceptance bill.

BIRWKZEEEREDA

HRAY

EBE

HRAEERERNEZRRPE M
NBZRUARLEEEBNETLZ

R\ o

AEERMBOHBEENEER/=T
ENTH - H&RAERMRSIRITAR

SERT LT
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FEMGImRME

23

168

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

23 BESEWRKREKRERE @)

RUEBEZIBEETEA—ANT
BA - WATIEESEL :

2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FET FHT

HK$ BT 1,843 1211
usD e 3,904 3,507
RMB AR 16,356 17,596
22,103 22314

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and

there is no recent history of default on bills receivable.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bank’s acceptance
bills amounting to approximately HK$10,660,000 (2018: HK$2,997,000)
with recourse in exchange for cash as at 30th June 2019. The transactions

have been accounted for as collateralised bank advances (Note 29).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period
is the carrying values of the receivables (2018: same). Other than the
bank's acceptance bills collateralised as bank advances, the Group does

not hold any collateral as security.

FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

FBRREZFEEREERAEEN
#) B BT I R e W SR AR 2 R AR ©

RZE—NFNA=Z+AEAEEZ
M B8 A # 47 10,660,000/ 7T (==
— N\ 12,997,000/ 70) HIIRITHEN
EZERIR TIR/TUNBREIRE - 8
RHE 5| RER A RITRR (M
29) °

EBREEHY  ERARMNZSEAR
AERLASEREFNEEREE
—ZE-N\F R - BRREE TR
TABRBER N RITALERI
AEBETFHETAEREANER

o
on °
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24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24

As at 30th June 2019, the Group had an outstanding forward foreign
exchange contract of HK$74,000 (2018: HK$35) mainly to purchase
USD (2018: purchase USD). The maximum notional principal amount of

25

the outstanding forward foreign exchange contract at 30th June was as

follows:

FEMGHRRME

fTEEmMTA

RZZT—hhFEXA=Z+H £&H
B #IE74,0008 T (ZF—)\F : 35
BIL) ZARWINERHAE D EB U
BET(ZZE—NF:BXET) - K
NAZTHRERZKINERE

MZBRRERSREMAT

2019 2018

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FET FET

Sell HK$ for USD THEBTUEAET 156,000 148,200
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25 IRENBITERS
(a)  Cash and cash equivalents (a) HeRBE2Z5

2019 2018

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FET FHT

Cash on hand Bekts 587 716

Bank balances RITEH 93,014 117,000

93,601 117,716
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FEMGImRME

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

170

@)

(b)

25

BERBITESR @)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) (a) B2 REZH(E)
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies: Re RRITERUATIEER
B :
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET  TER
HK$ BT 8,929 14,268
RMB AR 67,111 85299
usb e 17,387 17,966
Others 81 174 183
93,601 117,716
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITHEBRBBREBRRITERZ
deposit rates. F B EREUH S ©
The Group's cash and bank balances of HK$69,085000 (2018: AEBzRERRITESRHE
HK$85,456,000) are deposited with banks in Mainland China. 69,085,000 7T (=T — \F :
The remittance of these funds out of Mainland China is subject 85,456,000/ 7T) X H Bl A #h 2
to the exchange control restrictions imposed by Mainland China RITHETF - BERESELF
government. A b & R 7 AR B A 3t B F
B 2 IMEE Bl A 16k
Restricted bank deposits (b) ZRHBIIRITIZH

As at 30th June 2019, RMB30,919,000 (equivalent to
HK$35,135,000) (2018: RMB30,071,000 (equivalent to
HK$35,799,000)) are restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for
serving of debt for revolving loans provided by the bank (Note 29).
The restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 1.75% (2018:
[.75%) per annum with remaining maturity less than twelve months

after the balance sheet date.

FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

—E-NLFXNA=ZFH

30,919,000 AR® (Z£ELN
35,135,000 77m) (ZE—N
F 30,071,000 AR¥ (5E
#935,799,0008 7T ) ) AR H
RIRTTER - THRRIBITES
RITRHEBREFRNEERE
(F7E29) o PR HIAIRITIF K
WBREFE 2 —8tH (=
T-NF Bz HtH)
ZEEFE  WHREEBMER
HEFIREAR DR+ = A -
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FEMBERRME
26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26 ESRNARRESRE
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables by invoice date is as BORNALRENRBRERAZ
follows: BRI DT
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERr TET
Below 90 days 0-90H 55,454 84,434
91 — 180 days 91-180H I3 [11
Over 180 days iR 180 H 1,512 1,514
56,979 86,059
The carrying values of trade and bills payables approximate their fair BN NEMNEE ZREmEHR
values, and are denominated in the following currencies: HAABERE  WATHEEE
B
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER FET
HK$ BT 114 3,402
RMB AR 23,962 39211
usD X 32,903 43,446
56,979 86,059
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FEMTBBHRRME
27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 27 REARKRAEE
Share capital @S
Number of
ordinary Share
shares of capital

HK$0.10 each  nominal value
BREE BRAEE
0.108TZ HK$' 000
EER¥E THET

Authorised:
At Ist July 2017, 30th June 2018, Ist July 2018
and 30th June 2019

EERRA -
RZZE—+FtA-HB ZZT-/\F
NA=TR - ZE-/\FtA—H
E=E-AFR A=TH 800,000,000 80,000

Issued and fully paid:
At Ist July 2017, 30th June 2018, Ist July 2018
and 30th June 2019

BERITRBERA
R-ZE—+HF+A—B  —T—N\F
ANA=Z+E - ZE-NFLA-HBRK
“E-AFXA=1H 369,200,000 36,920

Share premium

RA R {E

HK$'000
TET

At Ist July 2017, 30th June 2018, Ist July 2018
and 30th June 2019

RZE—+F+tA—HB ZZ—-\FXA=+AH"
—E-N\FtA-BR-ZE-AFSA=1H 62,466
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FEMFRRME
28 RESERVES 28 f#1&
Other reserves
Bt
Financial
asset at
FvoCl
Available- reserve
Capital forse HAAEE  Exchange
reserve  Revaluation financial asset  sTAEM  fluctuation
(Note) reserve reserve  2ENEMN reserve Retained
ERGfk B HHEE Ei  Subtol earnings Total
(Wit) BHfE EERE fie  RIRE Nt REER L]
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén  TEx TR TEn  TEx  TER  TEn TR
At Ist July 2017 RZF-tFLA-R (1,505) 7953 1310 = 36,202 8960 36786 360746
Profit for the year RER - - - - = = 46,71 46,171
Currency translation differences EizE = = = = 14508 14508 = 14508
Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary without ~ ASEHEHIERNBLARER
change of control (Note 36(b) Wi (RsE3e(0)) (520) = = = = (520) = (520)
201612017 fina dividend paid (Note 12) HZF-1/25-t5R
AERE (1) = = - = = = (7384) (7384)
201712018 interim dividend paid (Note 1)~ Xfi=F~+/-F-N\EE
RERE (1) = = = = = = (369) (369
At 30th June 2018 RZB-\FRA=TA (2,025) 7953 1310 = 50710 57948 IS 409829
At It July 2018, as previously reported RZZ-\FtA-A (2,025) 7953 1310 = 50,710 57948 3188 409829
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.)(a)) S HRED (Wik2e) = = (1,310) 1310 = = on) @n)
At Ist uly 2018, as restated RZZ-\EtA-A(8E3) (2,025) 7953 = 1,310 50710 948 351609 409557
Profit for the year RERF - - - — = = 7,806 7,806
Currency translation differences EiEE - - - - (21,008) (21,008) - (21,008)
Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary AUEBH LA
without change of control (Note 36(a)) sl (Witse) (1,094) = = = = (1,094) = (1,094)
Revaluation gain on property, plant and 0% BRRAGEATREANE
equipment upon transfer to RS (i 8)
investment properties, net of tax (Note 18) - 1,687 - - - 1,687 - 1,687
Fair value loss of financial asset at FVOCI B BESF AL 2ARES
HBEEZ D EEER - = = (233) = (23) = (23)
2017/2018 final dividend paid (Note 12) HZF-+/25-\5E
RERE (M3E) = = - = = = (7,384) (7,384)
At 30th June 2019 RZE-NE~A=TH (3,119 9,640 = 1,077 29,704 37300 3/ 3893
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FEMGImRME

28 RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

28 fRiE @)

P&

2019 2018

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FET THET

Capital reserve from reorganisation (note (a)) BAFBEE (M) 408 408

Changes of interests in subsidiaries without change TEBR X HIREO B A R R

of control (note (b)) (M5t (b)) (3,527) (2,433)
(3.119) (2,025)
(@)  The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate amount of the (@) ANEE T AR TR BRR

non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited and

the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by

the Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of the share

capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in

1994 (the “Reorganisation”).

(b)  The balance represents the net changes in capital reserve arising from the

(b)

change of interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

29 BORROWINGS

BRARZ EREERLERN AE
ER—NANAAFARRREBEEES
A(TEAE]) BT ZBRAEER
I PTULEB T B A B 2 IR A B4R
HMEZERE -

RIS RN F AN E A A a s
(DR EEHIRE) PRE LM E AR
1 e

29 B8

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TER TET
Bank loans due for repayment within FR—FNEBREIRITER -
one year — secured (Note 3.1(e)) BHER (FEE3.1(E) 126,094 89,157
Bank loans due for repayment after one year which contain FR—FRERBEERERER
a repayment on demand clause — secured (Note 3.1(e)) B2 BITER —
BHERA (HE3.1 () — 3,033
Trust receipt loans due for repayment within FR-—FERNERERKEER —
one year — secured (Note 3.1(e)) BHEA (HE3.1(e)) 270,223 270,085
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 23) BITHR ZR BT (HEE23) 10,660 2997
Bank overdrafts — secured RITEX — A — 10,257
406,977 375,529

174 s=aEERA7 Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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rEMBRRMEE
29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 29 A& @)
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their AEBEEEZFRAEEEAAEE
fair values as the impact of discounting is not significant. The Group's HE SIEJ«/(—F§|JEM7%$1 :
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TRz TRT
HK$ BT 247,197 230,634
RMB ARE 75,612 71,183
UsD e 84,168 73712
406,977 375,529
At 30th June 2019, all of the Group's bank borrowings are wholly E@:g NERA=+TH K&E
repayable within five years. WIRITERHERRAFAER -
The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out BREBEE R H#EREERERIEX
in the loan agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand FERENGEARECERESE
clause are as follows: LU
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TT TRT
Within | year —ER 406,977 372,496
Between | to 2 years —FEMF — 3,033
406,977 375,529
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FEMGImRME

29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 29

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the

weighted average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

B8 @)

REERBERAAKBEZERAH
R ER FonEFH R RN

2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FHT
— at fixed rates — EFEFIE 390,944 367,279
— at floating rates e 16,033 8,250
406,977 375,259

2019 2018
HK$ RMB usD HK$ RMB usD
BT ARY En BT AR ET
Trust receipt loans FRBEER 4.11% 6.02% 4.49% 3.65% 5.44% 4.06%
Short-term bank loans MHRTER 4.10% 5.74% — 3.28% 5.75% —
Bank overdrafts RITBEX = = = 5.00% 6.95% —
Bank advances for discounted bills  $R{TEAERZHEB = 3.81% — — 5.70% —

Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment
(Note [6), leasehold land and land use rights (Note 17), investment
properties (Note [8) and restricted bank deposits (Note 25 (b)) of the
Group.

Bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted
for as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bank's acceptance
bills and the related proceeds of the same amount are included in the
Group's trade and bills receivables (Note 23) and short-term borrowings

respectively at the end of the reporting period.

176 FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current
income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same taxation authority. The following amounts, determined after

appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

FEMGHRRME

30 EERHIE
ABETARTENEEEHES
ERBAREGEEY  BEEMH
BE% R E— B BKE - BT SE
AN EEREEEMEN - &
HABEENE  THLERRAE
BEABERNGIE :

2019 2018

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

TRz TRT

Deferred income tax assets BRHIEEE 10,018 7,497

Deferred income tax liabilities ELEHEAR (6,723) (6917)

3,295 580

The net movement on the deferred income tax is as follows: BRABELEHSHAREFZIHNT -

2019 2018

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

T TRT

At beginning of the year, as previously reported FH (MERZ2H]) 580 (1,208)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 (Note 2.2(a)) RmBE BN BRERUZIRNTE

(FizE22(@a)) 90 —

At beginning of the year, as restated FU(RED) 670 (1,208)

Credited to consolidated income statement (Note 1) riFalamRat A (M) 3,224 1,954

Credited to other comprehensive income EEMEEEEA (627) —

Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) HE—MEAR (FiFs) = (119)

Currency translation differences BN =R 28 (47)

At end of the year FR 3,295 580
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FEMTBBHRRME

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 ERERIE ()
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the FRNRELERIBEERBECEE) (1
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within Bl —EFii & 2 AR I EEAT) 0 R ¢

the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Fair value gains on Accelerated
Deferred income tax liabilities: investment properties tax depreciation Total
EEHEAE RENEAABEKRE MEH i & L
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T#r  TEr FEx  TErT  FTER 0 TAR

At beginning of the year E4) 1,440 1,387 6,578 6318 8,018 7,705
Charged/(credited) to ERARERNR

consolidated income statement ~ (§FA) 234 3 (456) 107 (222) 10
Charged to other comprehensive 7EELfth 2 Kz 1%

income 627 — — — 627 —
Currency translation differences & i Z %8 (65) 50 (202) 153 (267) 203
At end of the year FXR 2,236 1,440 5,920 6,578 8,156 8018

Decelerated

Deferred income tax assets: Provisions Tax losses tax depreciation Total
EEHBEE % HEER HERBRE x4

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEx TEr FTEx TETL TEx TEL TEx TEL

At beginning of the year, E9(NEFZ2H)

as previously reported 5,585 3,764 616 589 2,397 2,144 8,598 6,497
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 BB B BIREED

(Note 2.2(a)) FoRMTE (M22(2)) 90 = = = = = 90 =
At beginning of the year, as restated ~ F ] (X E7) 5,675 3,764 616 589 2,397 2144 8688 6,497
Credited to consolidated EFaKRER

income statement A 887 [,724 1,913 144 202 196 3,002 2,064
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) HE—HB AR (k) — = = (119) = = = (119)
Currency translation differences EXER (151 97 @ 2 81 57 (239) 156
At end of the year R 6,411 5585 2,522 616 2518 2397 11,451 8,598
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. At 30th June 2019, the
Group had unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward against future
taxable income amounted to approximately HK$292,950,000 (2018:
HK$268,179,000). These tax losses have no expiry date except that
approximately HK$10,104,000 (2018: HK$6,699,000) will expire from
2020 to 2024 (2018: 2019 to 2023). The potential deferred income tax
assets in respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised
amounted to approximately HK$49,196,000 (2018: HK$44,819,000).

As at 30th June 2019, deferred income tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to unremitted profits earned by certain Mainland China
subsidiaries of the Group amounting to approximately HK$276,599,000
(2018: HK$253,943,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

30

FEMBHRTRMEE
EEBIE (41)

Tdtiiﬁi;mﬁk%%ﬁﬁﬁ&wm@kﬁﬁ
mﬁﬁ%@ﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁzm‘kﬂ =]
A] 8L IR R 2R FE SR R A E B A 2D
e = ifﬂi/\ﬂ—JrE N

E@Iﬂﬁdz 7 88 DA K B8 R 2R FE AR

TRHQ@E’J%R%E‘J’}\“’JZ92950000/%

JC(=Z—)\4F : 268,179,000 L)

ERIEEFTS B & E 449,196,000

JL(ZZF— )\ : 44,819,000/ 7C) °

H_E_TFE_T_NFE(=F

—N\F: ZE-NFE_ZT_=F)

EIERR RSB 18 49410,104,00078 7T
—T— N\ 6,699,00087T) °

R-ZZF—hhFXA=+H £&EH
WTAMETHEBERNMWHBARZE
R B R BB 3R 5 FI £ 49 276,599,000
JL(=Z— )\ : 253,943,000/ L)
ZEREZBERCHERE AR
EEEAZEER B 2B LR
M UERAIR 2 RZEERE
]I 2R TR
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FEMGImRME

31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 3] EBEERER

(a)  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated (a) BRBAD G M & RFELEZ
from operations: B HE% -
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TER FHET
Profit before income tax TR A 14,697 66,429
Adjustments for: HEBIER -
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0% BERRENE 18,414 16,808
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment — — &Y% « BE &R 2 W (67) (108)
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights ~ — & 1-3 o 4= {5 FA #E 85 653 679
— Fair value Losses/(gains) on - MNERBANZ AR BEEE,/
forward exchange contracts (Mrz=) 74 (29)
— Unrealised fair value gains on investment properties — IXEWEN AL BERETEKE (16,009) (12,697)
— Loss allowance on trade receivables - BN ERE R 126 1,188
— Provision for impairment of inventories, net - REREEE - £ 4,884 3,499
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) — HE—M B QAR (FEs) — (398)
— Interest income — FEMA (1,043) (553)
— Interest expense —MEXH 17,013 13,086
Changes in working capital: HELEE
— Inventories -FE (38,999) (32222)
— Trade and bills receivables, other receivables, - BIRET R ERERE -
prepayments and deposits H W - BERkES 30,947 (7,367)
~ Trade and bills payables, other payables, - BIRNTRENTE - Hib
deposits received and accruals ERRREKTE RERER (38,973) 15
Cash (used in)/generated from operations mekk(ER)/EfeRe (8,283) 48,330

180 FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited



31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 31

(Continued)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sales of (b) HEHEEHEEREXA HEY
property, plant and equipment comprise: 2 BERIEEHAELE
7
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FT TRT
Net book amount (Note 16) BREDHE (P EE16) 65 36
Gain on disposal of property, HENE  BEREZEZ
plant and equipment (Note 9) Yzs (H3E9) 67 108
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BiE RRXEMER
plant and equipment 132 [44
(c)  For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash () e HeREXNE HE
and cash equivalents include the following: RHSZHAITINIEE -
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
T TRT
Cash and bank balances (Note 25) Re kB4R (HEE25) 93,601 117,716
Bank overdrafts (Note 29) RITEX (fi5E29) — (10,257)
93,601 107,459
(d)  The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as (d) BEFRBEZEIEER R FRAW
follows: e
Bank borrowings
RITHEE
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TR TRT
At st July Rt A—H 365,272 322,572
Cash flow Bem
— Proceed from bank loans — HERITER 518,634 409,280
— Repayment of bank loans —ERFTER (465,451) (440,228)
— (Decrease)/increase in trust receipt loans — ERBBER CRD),/Em (8,709) 71,599
Non-cash changes FRe#
Exchange differences EHEH (2,769) 2,049
At 30th June WANAZ=Z+H 406,977 365,272

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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32 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

32 ARIE

Capital commitments (a) BALAE
At 30th June 2019, the Group had the following capital RZE—RFERA=+H " K
commitments for addition of property, plant and equipment: SEEBEYE  BERREZ
BAEGET ¢
2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERr TET
Contracted but not provided for BEROBRERE 1,221 2,550
Commitment under operating leases (b) EHEFRE

As at 30th June 2019, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of

land and buildings as follows:

R-ZEBE-AFARA=F+H =&
SEERTIHHHEIRAZEH
T REBFZ A BEEEEHE
B2 REHZRIDHEENK -

2019 2018
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER TEX
Not later than one year —ER 4,834 6,391
Later than one year and not later than five years —FRETERAE 4322 8,559
9,156 14,950

Note: BT

On 15th June 2017, the Group entered into a non-cancellable operating
lease agreement with an agent of the local Mainland China government
authority to lease an industrial building premise for 5 years with a minimum
lease payment of RMB8.5 per square meter. During the non-cancellable
lease period, the Group commits an annual tax payment of RMB3,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,409,000), including the corporate
income tax and value added tax, from its business operation in the region
to the local Mainland China government authority. Any shortfall on the
committed tax payment would be paid in form of cash to the agent of the
local Mainland China government authority. The above lease commitments
only include commitments for basic rentals, and do not include commitments
for additional rentals payable, if any, when future tax payment falls short of
the pre-determined level as it is not possible to determine in advance the
amount of such additional rentals.
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RZZT—tF X A+HA AR
M- IERNEEEYE—FBE R
HWHBNRIBRIERE —ABAT
AR HEGECERE S L - &K
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I [ 7 7 B A ) % P B b b
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares.
The remaining 46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of
the shares of Good Benefit Limited are beneficially owned by certain

Directors of the Company.

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the
Group and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note |5

to the consolidated financial statements.

In addition to those disclosed in Note |5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the following transactions were carried out with related

parties:

FEMGHRRME

33 EBREALIRS

AEEHGood Benefit Limited (£
EEARRESHEMK L2 AR)
ZEHl o EEBEARRBESZAT=
Bk ARz A D W TRE
tRBEAREZEAR ° Good Benefit
Limited BB E X9 REHKRAF]

ARBMTBEESHRRELAEEZ
EEZEBAE  HFEMAFME RE
B TSTRERMITEISHE -

BRAR B M ISR MG ISP EES) -
HEEEATETHNISMT

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TERT TAL

Operating lease rentals paid to related parties: KNTEBEALHERS
— Build Fair Limited (Note (1)) — RBEARAR (M) 1,080 970

— Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited - BREZBRHARRAR

(Note (ii)) GEIO)

973 907

2,053 1,877

Notes:

() Build Fair Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr. HUI Sai Chung, a
Director of the Company.

(i) Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited is a company wholly owned

by Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, a Director of the Company.

Operating lease rentals paid to related parties are on mutually agreed

basis.

P&

() SBERATHARRES LR
TEZEHER -

(i) BEEEBENERATMAAFNE
EHEN LR EES o

XNFEREALTHEER SRS
FREERETY

Annual Report &% 20182019 183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGImRME

34 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 34

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in

BRAER AT

EERBARRR Z&EZERRAAF A
Good Benefit Limited (T HBHER 2
BEFMKIZ AR °

the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

TEMEAF
R=B-AFAXA=TA  A2F
ZEBHBATMT :

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2019:

184

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name MRS B BRTRAR Principal activites ~ AAFFEZ

#8 RENEH BE/EMER FREE BERRFEIL

Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100
Company Limited EEERARES (0 REER

(Note b) (FizEb)

Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic ~ Mainland China HK$93,200,000 Manufacture and sale of colorants 100
Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 93,200,000/%7C  and compounded plastic resins
SREBBRE enterprise BEREEECHE K
ARAF R At EEANRBE

*SNEBELE

Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Manufacture and trading of 100
Technology Limited BE shares of HK$ | each colorants and compounded
BEEXERAT 500,000 R EE plastic resins
| BT & B RERBEEBHR
EEA NN

Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture of 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited oy shares of HK$ | each engineering plastic

RETIREHARRAR 2,000,000 R EE products
BT E B BUETRE
ERBE®

FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited



35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

35 FEWEQT (@)

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name SRR B CRTRAZ Principal activities ~ANAFAFEZ
2% RE AR BE/ ERER IEXRE BRREXBESH
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary Investment holding and 100
Materials Limited A shares of HK$ | each property holding
BRABBRHARAT | 000 B E(E BEERR
| BT BB SEERYES
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$ I each (Note c)
500,000/ A HE &
| BT B
RIERR (P 5t c)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Trading of plastic materials 100
Materials (Hong Kong) B shares of HK$| each BEEZBRH
Limited 500,000 B E{E
REBBRH (FE) | BT BB
AR
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic Mainland China HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Company Limited * wholly foreign-owned 34,400,000/% 7T colorants and compounded

ERRBBRY
BRAR

enterprise
hEA
*EEELE

plastic resins
BERHEEEH
REEAKEE
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

35 FEWEQT (@)

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name SRR B CRTRAZ Principal activities ~ANAFAFEZ
2% RAENEH BE/ ERER FREYK BERRFEIL
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic Mainland China HK$10,500,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Company Limited * wholly foreign-owned 10,500,000 7T colorants and compounded
EERELBRBRM enterprise plastic resins
ARRA] R A i BERHEE R
*HEEELE NE B
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale of 100
REFAEFR AT BB shares of HK$ | each plastic products
5,000 B E A BUER
| BT BB HEBBER
Ngai Hing Engineering Mainland China US$200,000 Trading of engineering 76.2
Plastic (Shanghai) * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T plastic products
Company Limited enterprise BEIREBER
RETIZBH A
(LB) BRAR *HEBELE
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic  Mainland China US$200,000 Manufacture of engineering 76.2
Materials (Shanghai) * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T plastic products
Company Limited enterprise BUETRZBEMm
RITRERM(LE) R M
BRAF *HEBELE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Mainland China US$100,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Company Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 100,0005 7T compounded plastic resins

EERERE
ARRE]

enterprise
hEAH,
*INEBELE
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 FEWEQT (&)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name SRR B CRTRAZ Principal activities ~ANAFAFEZ
2% RAENEH BE/ ERER FREYK BERRFEIL
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic ~ Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary Trading of engineering 76.2
(Hong Kong) Limited A shares of HK$ | each plastic products
BRATREN (BR) 1,000,000 B R I EETREBER
BRAF BT &R
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China US$ 1,200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Plastic Materials Company  * wholly foreign-owned 1,200,000 7T colorants and compounded
Limited enterprise plastic resins
EFRETERRH RE N BERHERRER
BRAF *INEBELE & BaE
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Company Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 10,000,000 A & BEEZBRE
BMMREEE 5 enterprise
AR hEIAH,
*HEEELE
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing Mainland China US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Company Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 400,000 7T BEEZBRH
LERERER enterprise
FEHEEARAF] RE N
*HEEELE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics ~ Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale of 100
Company Limited B shares of HK$ | each biodegradable plastic
RERRENERRA 10,0008 G Ak (B materials
| BT BB RENHEE
RREBRH
Ngai Hin Engineering Mainland China HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 76.2
Plastic (Dongguan) * wholly foreign-owned 8,000,000/ 7T plastic products

Company Limited enterprise BETRZBEM
TRITREH PRI
BRRA *ONEBB K
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

188

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

35 FEWEQT (@)

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name SRR B CRTRAZ Principal activities ~ANAFAFEZ
2% RAENEH BE/ ERER FREYK BERRFEIL
Shanghai Coltec Plastic Mainland China US$200,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Company Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T compounded plastic resins
FEEEEE enterprise BEZEGHK
BHARAH R At EEA NN
*HEEELE
Dongguan Coltec Plastic Mainland China HK$3,000,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Company Limited * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 7T compounded plastic resins
SEEBH enterprise BEECEK
E5ERAT R A BB AN
*EBELR
Tianjin Ngai Sog Hing Mainland China US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Company Limited * wholly foreign-owned 400,0003€ 7T BEREBRH
RRFRIE enterprise
AEERAR R
*EBELR
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Investment holding 100
RETRERR AT e shares of HK$| each REER
10,000 A% E{E
| BT BBR
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong  Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Plastic Materials Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& EREBRH
BMmRETERRE enterprise
BRIE R A,
*NEBEDRR
Chongging Ngai Hing Hong ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Plastic Materials Limited  * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A K #& ESBRBRH

BEMRETEBRRM
BRAR]

enterprise
R A,
*HEBELR
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

35 FEMBLE (&)

Effective
Issued and fully percentage of
paid up share capital/ equity held by

registered capital the Company

Name AR BRIRAR Principal activities ~ANAFAFEZ
=1 RE AR BRE/EREX IEXRE BRREXBESH
Shanghai Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100

Plastic Materials Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& ERBRE
EERETERRE enterprise

BRLE hEAH,

*INEBELE

Notes: MIE -
(a)  All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands (a) PRI T8 N 528 4 i U B &

(b)

(d)

are limited liability companies. All subsidiaries established in Mainland China

are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly
held by the Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly
held by the Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited (“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in
the profits or surplus assets of NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive
notice of or attend or vote at any general meeting of NHHPML in respect of
their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by
the holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

(b)

(d)

R zMBARERBREMER
Al - FTERPERMAY 2 B A
A RINEEEDRE

P L5z 2K B R AR Ngai
Hing (International) Company
Limited H A AR EZFAIN - B
RAFBEREE -

BREPBBRABRARF ([3RH])
BRI \LhTZﬁﬁAE%@
B E RN EHBEED K -
%%%E%ﬁZuthWWﬁi
BRASBEXHFERERRAE
NG ERE -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited AR S AR B4E TEER
SREEROFAARDATEEZ
Ehefn 2 BB -

ERINHEZRAUANFEEERE
PRE B E B AR B EFE
ZEERBH2ARBNEAR - E
%éﬂ?%w%w HpHER R ZFE
LEARBRITEK °
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36 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of additional interest in Richam Investments Limited
(“Richam”) and NHH Worldwide Logistics Limited (“NHWL")

During the year ended 30th June 2019, the Group acquired [6%
of effective interest shareholding of Richam and 16% of effective
interest NHWL at a consideration of HK$I. The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interests of HK$1,094,000 and a
decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$1,094,000. The effect of change in the ownership interest of
Richam and NHWL on the equity attributable to owners of the

Company during the year is summarised as follows:

36 BHEFEHUEZNRS

(a)  HeFERicham Investments Limited
([ Richam )} 3% BIRIX W) e
R 7] ([REY 7)) BN #Ea

REBE=—ZE—NE~A=+H
Jtir“ﬁq REBRIBTZ
REWERIchamB D Z T2
BEREAERBEY)TE D Z
TE— B ER AEEE
wuét% HIFEZS 1L AN 1,094,00078
T BEBRARRIAEENRE
2RI A 1,094,000/ 7T © Richam
MEBREYRETE B ERNE
BEHAFENTEBRAQRFN
BENRZNZERENT

HK$’000

TER

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired BAJZHI RN REE (1,094)
Consideration paid to non-controlling interest (HK$1) T TR EE (17T) -
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity BEXMEED DR HER (1,094)

Acquisition of additional interest in NHWL

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group acquired 10.1%
of effective interest shareholding of NHWL at a consideration
of HK$I|. The Group recognised an increase in non-controlling
interests of HK$520,000 and a decrease in equity attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$520,000. The effect of change in the
ownership interest of NHWL on the equity attributable to owners

of the Company during the year is summarised as follows:

(b) IBREY) RS M

REBEE_FT—N\FA=1H
IHFER  REBRIBTZ
REKEREMTE D22
— 2B AL c NEERE
R FE 12 i #E 2535 A0 520,000 7
TC RBRARRFE &N
584> 520,00078 7T © SRELY) R
M EERESNEREAFE
NEBRARRFAENEDS

IRERBNT ¢
HK$’000
TER
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired BAJEH RN REE (520)
Consideration paid to non-controlling interest (HK$!) SR FIEEHIEENEE(1ET) —
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity BEZANEED) NEET R (520)
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FE M RRME
37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37 ZBERE
During the year ended 30th June 2016, the Group received a claim REBEZZ—R"FEFA=THILF
from a customer in respect of the sales of alleged defective goods with B AEBRE—FEFRFABHT
claim amount approximately RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately A M E mBEH 5,000,000 A REE (£E
HK$5,682,000). #95,682,000/87C) R o
On 28th August 2018, an appeal (the “Appeal”) was lodged with the RZZE-—NFNAZ+NB ' Z&
Wenling City People's Court of Zhejiang Province (the “Court”) against FHRBEZ_Z-NFA=+AH
the judgement made during year ended 30th June 2018 invalidating the IFFEERZHREMNTIERET
claim. On 7th May 2019, the Court has made a judgement to invalidate ABRER (AR ]) 2 E&F (I £
the Appeal. Fl) - RZBE-NAFRERALRH &
BTE L HDRI B @ L 5F o
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38 @ TA (&EH)
2019 2018
Note HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
Pl TERr TET
Financial assets - loans and receivables A E- S RN
Trade and bills receivables B IRKFRERER 23 234,446 284,292
Other receivables and deposits HERb s ki 5,070 9,133
Restricted bank deposits RE R RITER 25 35,135 35,799
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEd 25 93,601 117,716
368,252 446,940
Financial asset - available for sale IBEE-AIHEHE
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEENBEE 20 — 2,000
Financial asset at FVOCI RO BEFALBZERE
BHEE
Financial asset at FVOCI BAARBE AR RSN 20 1,677 —
HHEEE
Financial liabilities - fair value through profit or loss MISBE-EAA BEERER LK
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 24 (74) —
Financial liabilities - other financial liabilities HBRE-HOMBAE REHKT
at amortised cost
Trade and bills payables BIORNRRENER 26 56,979 86,059
Other payables Hith s e B T & 18,114 25919
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 406,977 375,529
482,070 487,507
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39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 39 RAFMEEEBREGH

THE COMPANY B 5
Balance sheet EEAEX
2019 2018
Note HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
B &E FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
| estvens i sdanes hEsAsE . em 2l
Current assets MEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries R EPNGIEN 106,835 107,642
Other receivables Hfth FE M R 228 [53
Cash and bank balances Be M1 109 102
.. loz7,172 107,897
Total assets BEE 169,883 170,608

192 FRFFTHPR AT Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMGHRRME

39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

39 ARAEMNEERERKM

THE COMPANY (Continued) Ee 8 @)
Balance sheet (Continued) BEERER(HE)
2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$' 000
P&t T AT
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable to ARIREEERA RS
the Company's equity holders
Share capital BRA 36,920 36,920
Share premium R4 (B 62,466 62,466
Other reserve Hitl# 39 (a) 62,511 62,511
Retained earnings REBREH 39 (a) 7,305 8,090
Totalequty . #E= l69.202 169.987
LIABILITY afE
Current liability mEBE
CAccrwds mEEA 81 621
Total equity and liability mREzREE 169,883 170,608

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 27th September 2019 and were signed on its behalf

HUI Sai Chung
FrithER
Director

e

HUI Kwok Kwong

FRELK

Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
B L /ERE FARAETE

ARFIMEEBBEREHREETERN
—E-NEAR-T+ B I

RREFEHF
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39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 39 RAFMEEEBREGH

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet (Continued)

Note: (a) Reserve movement of the Company

HEE (@)
BEEER(H)
HEE : (a) QTS

Other reserve

— contributed

surplus
(Note)
Hibfts — Retained
BB earnings Total
(B REBREF BE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT FHET FHET
At Ist July 2017 R=ZE—+tFtA—H 62,511 8,896 71,407
Profit for the year RERF = 10,270 10,270
2016/17 final dividend paid XNZT—R/ =T~
FERAKE = (7,384) (7,384)
2017/18 interim dividend paid XH=ZF—+ /=N
FEFRHRRE = (3,692) (3,692)
At 30th June 2018 R=E—N\FA=+H 62511 8,090 70,601
At Ist July 2018 RZZE—NFtHA—H 62,511 8,090 70,601
Profit for the year ARE 5 A — 6,599 6,599
2017/18 final dividend paid IR=ZT—+ /TN
FERARE — (7,384) (7,384)
At 30th June 2019 —E-hFAA=TH 62,511 7,305 69,816
Note: BEE

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at
the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount
of the Company's shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the
contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the underlying
subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium account.
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RRAA BB - TiNgai Hing
(International) Company Limited RE 404
BAMZGARRESEARRREE
MBI EEMREZZE - AE
BeEABBRIBENBRAFTHENBEAR
ZRHEEEEA -

REARE-NN—FRENE - B
A 2K TR - BRIFAEIEEMARE
() X AR B B B AR 23 Ik 1R R e
FERFEEINPZAE  R()DAE
EzAZRBEeSEMEREAR
ﬁE%ﬁ%$ﬁ%@mF2@@ J
RATBEIRIRNREINES
FEH DK °

EEd

b

%”" >\<ﬂ



The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial

Five-Year Financial Summary

AFPRBGRE

—_

\4

AEERBELEAYRFESF2FEE

I\/

years are as follows: BERBEHT
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$ 000
TEr TET THT TAT THT
Results #E
Profit/(loss) attributable to NERREN
equity holders of the Company wAl/ (ER) 7,806 46,171 34,430 (26,492) 25225
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BERE 1,019,873 1,049,595 953,013 847,339 959,403
Total liabilities BER (507,280)  (515,554)  (469,816)  (391,618)  (440972)
Non-controlling interests IR (23,874) (24,826) (23,065) (20,384) (21,336)
Capital and reserves attributable to NG E N
the Company’s equity holders G 488,719 509,215 460,132 435,337 497,095
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Schedule of Principal Properties

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT BEM=
As at 30th June 2019 and 2018, the Group had the following investment RZE-—ARZZF-—NFA=1+H &K
properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China: SEREUREERTPEANMZKREY
¥
As at 30th June 2019 R=B-AFAA=TH
Category Group’s
Description Addresses Usage  of lease term interest
i it RE HEE2E FREER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Floor, Factory ~ Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units S i HA
IXREEN - &S ,2,3,4,5 6 7and 8 on 10th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on | Ith
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [2th Floor and Roof 3, Hopeful Factory
Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo
Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BBMFD B AR NRIE-1 5 BARBEE 10- 165 BB TR 028
4% 3B2E 6BTRBE C8E8E 1081234567
R8Z - 111 IR8E - 12B3ERKRA3N:
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Zhen, Dongguan Industrial Medium 100%
units — Mainland China  City, Guangdong Province, Mainland China I% 55
TEARESM - PEAN URPERNBERERETEERFAENIXEAE
Car park units — Hong Kong Car Parks 3, 14 and 15, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo  Commercial Short 100%
BEM - FE Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New HE o HA
Territories, Hong Kong
BRRRYDHARNRE- 1S5 RARER 10-165FEBTEH L3
4% IS5E a1
Commercial office units Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level, Modo Nanjing ~ Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment — Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 Nanjing Road, Nankai District, [ i HA
Mainland China Tianjin, Mainland China
[EES /N3 vl b B g3 K 2 T R 5 8 R K 349 SR MOD ORI RB R KM A | 618
PRI 16121613~ 1614 16158 1616F
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYMER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT (Continued) BEW= @)
As at 30th June 2018 R-E-NFXA=T1H
Category of Group's
Description Addresses Usage lease term interest
R by Ag  HESNE TEEER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Floor, Factory ~ Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units HE i
TEREEN - BE 1,2,3,4,5 6,7 and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on | Ith
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [2th Floor and Roof 3, Hopeful Factory
Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo
Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BERRYBARARIE- 15K RAREE 10-165FBBT RS L2
4% 31B2E  6IBTREE - 818F - 101°2°34:56"7
R8ZE - | IBIRSE - NEBIERKRAIN
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Zhen, Dongguan Industrial Medium 100%
units — Mainland China  City, Guangdong Province, Mainland China I% 85
TEAESN - HERE URAPENEERERENEHEREN 2 TERE
Car park units — Hong Kong Car Parks 3, 14 and 15, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo  Commercial Short 100%
FHEi - BB Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New [HES yShi
Territories, Hong Kong
FBISD BARAKRIE- 15K RAREE 10-16RBBT #1013 -
14 R ISR ER
Commercial office units Units 1612, 1613, 1614 and 1615, 16th Level, Modo Nanjing Road ~ Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment - Xintiandi Building, No. 349 Nanjing Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, GES i
Mainland China Mainland China
EES YN B0 P9 3t K 22 77 2 A R 349 SR MOD O B RER BT RS KK 1 618
"l 1612 1613~ 1614 R I615%

Annual Report %54 20182019 197



Company Directory
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
|0 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2693 1663

Fax: +852 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:
No. 9 Dai Shun Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2660 0208
Fax: +852 2667 4831

Dongguan Factory:

Chiling Industrial Zone, Houjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 769 8558 8755 Zip: 523940
Fax: +86 (0) 769 8558 1756
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BETHRAF
(REFERBAT2ERAA)

EBMNER -

BB

R AR

RELE 1058

IR T ZE R 06183 %

TR ¢ +852 2693 1663

f5H : +852 2694 0877

44k« http//www.nhh.com.hk
BFBHFHLUE © info@nhh.com.hk

BB

BB

AR KK

A T
NEEEEE

B 5E ¢ +852 2660 0208
{EE : +852 2667 4831

RS

R A R FANE

BRAE

HEm

EHEERETHER

Fi5 486 (0) 769 8558 8755 EPERARSR : 523940
BB : +86 (0) 769 8558 1756
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Company Directory

aﬁj#’a\m/
Guangzhou Office: EMNMEE

A1806, Center Plaza, R AR SAE

No. 161 Linhe Road West, =¥ \In7l

Tianhe District, oA &R

Guangzhou, MFNFEEE 161 57

The People's Republic of China P ZRBIFREISA 1806

Tel: +86 (0) 20 3831 0226 Zip : 510620 B 0 +86 (0) 20 3831 0226 EPEARSR : 510620
Fax: +86 (0) 20 3831 0223 BE 1 +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

Shanghai Office: EBRERE :

Unit E, 16th Floor, HEE AR HAE

Zhao Feng Universe Building, g

No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road, AL PE R 1 8005%

Shanghai, KEIRIRAE

The People's Republic of China | 61EERE

Tel: +86 (0) 21 6440 3351 Zip: 200235 B 0 +86 (0) 21 6440 3351 EPERARSE : 200235
Fax: +86 (0) 21 6440 0373 BE 1 +86 (0) 21 6440 0373

Shanghai Factory: EERE :

No. 8100, Songze Ave. HREE A R AN

Qingpu Industrial Zone, &M

Shanghai, SHIEER

The People's Republic of China FAERE81005%

Tel: +86 (0) 21 6921 3333 Zip: 201707 FiE 486 (0) 21 6921 3333 EEARSE : 201707
Fax: +86 (0) 21 6921 5555 fBE : +86 (0) 21 6921 5555

Qingdao Factory: BEERKIL :

Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone, HREE A R AN

Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao, FEBMNE BRI

The People's Republic of China AR (BIMN) BRI EE

Tel: +86 (0) 532 8727 3100  Zip: 266300 Fih 0 +86(0) 53287273100 EBERARSR ¢ 266300
Fax: +86 (0) 532 8727 3110 BE 1 +86 (0) 532 8727 3110
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Company Directory

Chengdu Office: BERMEE

Room 2919, Building B, i AR HEAME

Longhu 3000 Constellations, )1l Ak AR T

No. 2 Jianshe North Road Section 3, BRIE =R %

Chengdu City, Sichuan Province, EM=TEE

The People's Republic of China BAE29 1955

Tel: +86 (0) 28 8328 5026 Zip: 610051 B 0 +86 (0) 28 8328 5026 EPEXARTR : 61005
Fax: +86 (0) 28 8328 5126 BE 1 +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

Xiamen Factory: E L

No.16-4 Putou Road, HEE AR HAE

Haicang District, rEEaEMM

Xiamen City, Fujian Province, ARR

The People's Republic of China HERER | 6-455%

Tel: +86 (0) 592 6093211 Zip: 361027 FiE 86 (0) 592 6093211 EBBUARIR : 361027
Fax: +86 (0) 592 6093600 fBE : +86 (0) 592 6093600

Tianjin Office: RKERSBR !

Units 2204-2206, Tower A, Ronghui Plaza, HREE A R AN

Nankai District, RET

Tianjin, mEHE

The People's Republic of China BhIE FEISARE2204-2206 F

Tel: +86 (0) 22 8752 8026 Zip: 300073 Fih 1 +86 (0) 22 8752 8026 EPEARSE : 300073
Fax: +86 (0) 22 8752 8109 fBE : +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

Chongging Office: EENWSBRE

Room 3601, Yingli International Financial Center, FREE AR HAE

No. 28 Minquan Road BEMATE

Yuzhong District, Chongging, R 285%

The People's Republic of China HABER SR 03601 =

Tel: +86 (0) 23 6382 0020  Zip: 400010 FiE o +86 (0) 23 63820020 EPERARSE : 400010
Fax: +86 (0) 23 6382 0090 BE 1 +86 (0) 23 6382 0090
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